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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTNOL3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED: SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
OR

[1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SE{N 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 1-13447
CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Grart

MARYLAND 2€-0630461
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (IRS Employer Identification No

1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK
(Address of principal executive offices)

10036
(Zip Code)

(646) 454-3759
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area rode

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék) filed all documents and reports required toled by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exad®Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter periottti&Registrant was required to file such repp#s)l (2) has been subject to such filing requirgséor the past 90 days:
Yes M NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant béasiitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T {8e@&32.405 of this chapter) during the precediggribnths (or for such shorter period that the tegyis was required to
submit and post such files).

YesO NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantlé&s@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, nocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se definition of “accelerated
filer,” “large accelerated filer,” and “smaller reqting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file®d  Accelerated filerdD  Non-accelerated fileEl ~ Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgfe Act).
YesO NoM
APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofakedracticable date:

Class Outstanding at November 6, 20(
Common Stock, $.01 par value 670,323,92¢
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzed

September 30,

December 31,

2009 2008
Assets: (Unaudited) (1)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 21,02 % 27,48(
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vall 1,996,46( 613,10¢
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali 1,823,30: 242,36:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of adloae for loar
losses of $3.0 million and $1.6 million, respeciyv 498,91! 583,34t
Accrued interest receivab 29,44+ 9,951
Other asset 33C 1,257
Total asset $ 4,369,481 $ 1,477,50.
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel 1,444,24. -
Repurchase agreements with affilia 153,07¢ 562,11¢
Securitized dek 414,33¢ 488,74
Payable for investments purcha 73,46( -
Accrued interest payab 3,19¢ 2,46F
Dividends payabl 80,31! 7,04
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 752 387
Investment management fees payable to affi 9,071 2,292
Total liabilites $ 2,178,45. $ 1,063,041
Commitments and Contingencies (Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,0000000share
authorized, 670,324,854 and 177,198,212 sharesdssinc
outstanding, respective $ 6,69 $ 1,76(C
Additional paic-in-capital 2,290,32! 831,96¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (53,329 (266,66%)
Accumulated defici (52,670 (152,607
Total stockholders' equit $ 2,191,020 $ 414,45!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 4,369,481 $ 1,477,50:

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated statemenfinancial condition at December 31, 20

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzed

(Unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended Septembel

For the Nine Months Ended

30, September 30,

2009 2008 2009 2008
Net Interest Income:
Interest incom« $ 104,69( 23,45¢  $ 197,77: 81,60
Interest expens 9,197 15,54: 26,552 49,59(
Net interest incom 95,49 7,91t 171,22 32,01%
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (6,209 - (14,789 -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredive income 4,02¢ - 6,10/ -
Net othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (2,18%) - (8,680 -
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains on interest rate sw - 10,06t - 4,15¢
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 74,50¢ (113,130) 87,45¢ (144,309
Realized losses on principal wi-downs (62) - (62) -
Realized losses on terminations of interest ratps - (10,46() - (10,337
Total other gains (losse 74,44 (113,529 87,39¢ (150,48!)
Net investment income (expens¢ 167,75! (105,610 249,93° (118,477
Other expenses
Management fe 8,64¢ 1,681 17,18¢ 6,13¢
Provision for loan losse 47 (563 1,41( 60C
General and administrative expen 1,057 81€ 2,828 3,37
Total other expense 9,75¢ 1,93¢ 21,42 10,10¢
Income (loss) before income taxe 158,00: (107,549 228,51¢ (128,58()
Income taxe: - 12 1 15
Net income (loss $ 158,00: (107,550 $ 228,51! (128,599
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 0.24 (2.7 $ 0.51 (3.30)
Weighted average number of shares outstar-basic and dilute: 670,324,86 38,992,89 452,016,98 38,994,35
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income (loss $ 158,00: (107,550 $ 228,51t (128,599
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie 238,96¢ (146,45¢) 292,06: (282,61)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses incluidetet income for other-than-temporary
impairments 2,18t - 8,68( -
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gainspks included in net incor (74,447 113,13( (87,39%) 144,30
Other comprehensive income (los 166,70° (33,326) 213,34¢ (138,307
Comprehensive income (los $ 324,70¢ (140,88) $ 441,86 (266,90:)

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(Unaudited)
Accumulated
Common Additional Other
Stock Par Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Value Capital Loss Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 1,76 $ 831,96t $ (266,660 $ (152,60) $ 414,45!
Net income - - - 228,51 228,51
Other comprehensive incor - - 213,34¢ - 213,34¢
Proceeds from common stock offerir 4,63% 1,368,25! - - 1,372,89.
Proceeds from common stock offerir
to affiliate 297 89,78: - - 90,07¢
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 321 - - 322
Common dividends declare
$0.26 per shar - - - (128,587 (128,587)
Balance, September 30, 2C $ 6,69: $ 2,290,320 $ (53,32) $ (52,670 $ 2,191,02!

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:
(Unaudited)

For the Nine Months Ended September 3(

2009 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activites:
Net income (loss $ 228,51 $ (128,59
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rethcprovided by operating activite
Accretion of investment discour (38,539 (25)
Unrealized gain on interest rate swi - (4,15€)
Realized (gain) loss on sale of investme (87,45¢) 144,30
Realized losses on principal wi-downs 61 -
Other-thar-temporary credit impairmen 8,68( -
Provision for loan losse 1,41( 60C
Restricted stock gran 322 1,28¢
Changes in operating asse

Increase in accrued interest receivi (19,497 (3,879

Decrease in other ass 927 10€
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase in accounts payable and other liadsl 365 584

Increase in investment management fee payalafiliate 6,77¢ -

Increase in accrued interest pay: 734 2,16t
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 102,30 $ 12,39¢
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Mortgage-Backed Securities portfolic

Purchase $ (4,505,42) $ (1,229,28i)

Sales 1,627,991 567,45!

Principal payment 321,09¢ 144,51¢
Loans held for investment portfoli

Purchase - (735,27))

Sales - 90,73t

Principal payment - 23,11t
Securitized loans

Principal payment 82,09( 27,54¢

Purchase - (11))
Reverse repurchase agreems - 265,00(
Restricted cas - 1,35(
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (2,474,24) $ (844,94))
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 52,976,28 $ 49,177,28

Payments on repurchase agreem (51,941,08) (48,828,20)

Net proceeds from common stock offeril 1,372,89. 277)

Net proceeds from common stock offerings tdiatés 90,07¢ -

Proceeds from collateralized mortgage debt barrgs - 526,21°

Payments on collateralized mortgage debt bormgs (77,379 (25,529

Dividends paic (55,31)) (16,800
Net cash provided by financing activiti $ 2,365,48. $ 832,68
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis. $ (6,457 $ 141
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe¢ 27,48( 6,02¢€
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 21,02 $ 6,167




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:

(Unaudited)
For the Nine Months Ended September 3(
2009 2008
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest pai $ 25,95¢  $ 47,42¢
Taxes pait $ - 3 33
Non cash investing activities:
Payable for investments purcha: $ 73,460 $ 146,82¢
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for-sale securitie $ 213,34t % (138,30
Non cash financing activities:
Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ $ 80,311 $ 6,04¢

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

(Unaudited)

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Company”) was aiged in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Companyrencted operations on November 21, 2007 when it
completed its initial public offering. The Compalngs elected to be taxed as a real estate investmen(“REIT”), under the Internal Revenue Codd 886, as amended. As
long as the Company qualifies as a REIT, the Coyppélh generally not be subject to U.S. federaktate corporate taxes on its income to the extexttthe Company
distributes at least 90% of its taxable net incami¢s stockholders. In July 2008, the Companynied Chimera Securities Holdings, LLC, a wholly-owrseibsidiary. In June
2009, the Company formed Chimera Asset Holding lan@ Chimera Holding LLC, both wholly-owned subsi@ia. Chimera Securities Holdings LLC, Chimeraétdsolding
LLC and Chimera Holding, LLC are qualified REIT sidiaries. Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Anyialowns approximately 6.7% of the Compasyommon shares. T
Company is managed by Fixed Income Discount Adyi€wmpany (“FIDAC”), an investment advisor registémwith the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantééments have been prepared in conformity withirteguctions to Form 10-Q and Article 10, Rule@Dof
Regulation SX for interim financial statements. Accordinglety may not include all of the information and foates required by accounting principles generaityeated in th
United States of America (“GAAP”). The consolidafathncial statements are unaudited; however, éogsinion of the Company’s management, all adjustseonsisting only
of normal recurring accruals, necessary for agegsentation of the financial position, result®pérations, and cash flows have been includedes& lanaudited consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunaotidh the audited consolidated financial statemémtkided in the Company’s Annual Report on FormKLfdr the year ended
December 31, 2008. The nature of the Company’siessiis such that the results of any interim pesi@ihot necessarily indicative of results for layfear. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the@any and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Chimereu&iges Holdings, LLC, Chimera Asset Holding LL@&Chimera
Holding LLC. All intercompany balances and trangats have been eliminated.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hanthandy market funds with original maturities lesarti®0 days.

(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-backeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of mortgage loans. The fizmy
classifies its investment securities as eitherditrg,” “available-for-sale,” or “held-to-maturity.” The Company holds its RMBS as available-for,saeords investments at
estimated fair value as described in Note 5 ofdtwmsolidated financial statements, and unrealizéus and losses are included in other comprebeirstome (loss) in the
consolidated statements of operations and compséleimcome (loss). From time to time, as pathefoverall management of its portfolio, the Comparay sell any of its
RMBS investments and recognize a realized gaings &s a component of earnings in the consoliddétements of operations and comprehensive inctoss) (tilizing the
specific identification method.

Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipiincipal balance of the investment securityer®iums or discounts on investment securities treat a
guaranteed as to principal and/or interest repaym®is with agencies of the U.S. Government oeffaly chartered corporations such as Ginnie Magddie Mac, or Fannie
Mae (“Agency RMBS") are recognized over the lifetioé investment using the effective interest methd@remiums or discounts amortization/accretion om-Agency RMBS
is recognized in accordance with Accounting Staasl&odification (“ASC") 325|nvestment-Other, Beneficial Interestsin Securitized Financial Assets, Subsequent
Measurement . For nonAgency RMBS, the Company estimates at the timeuofhgase expected future cash flows, prepaymentispeeedit losses, loss severity, and loss tir
based on the Company’s observation of availablketatata, its experience, and the collective judgnoéits management team to determine the effedtiterest rate on the
RMBS. Not less than quarterly, the Company reeataks; and if necessary, makes adjustments toatgss utilizing internal models, external markesearch and sources in
conjunction with its view on performance in the rdgency RMBS sector. Changes to the Company’smagtans subsequent to the purchase date may ircoeatecrease the
amortization/accretion of premiums and discount&ctvhffects interest income. Changes to assumptioat decrease expected future cash flows mait resather-than-
temporary impairment.




Fair value of RMBS is determined utilizing a pnigimodel that incorporates such factors as coyp@payment speeds, weighted average life, collateraposition
borrower characteristics, expected interest rdifescaps, periodic caps, reset dates, collaterassning, expected losses, expected default sevenetdit enhancement, and other
pertinent factors. The Company validates thevalue determined by the pricing model with quotes/jgled by independent dealers and/or pricing ses:i Material
differences and the impact of the differences betwtbe fair values determined by the Company aind ffarty sources are disclosed in Note 5 of thesobidated financial
statements.

If the fair value of an investment security is l&san its amortized cost at the date of the codatdid statement of financial condition, the Compamnglyzes the
investment security for other-than-temporary impent. Management evaluates the Company’s RMBS8tfar-than-temporary impairment at least on a guigrbasis, and
more frequently when economic or market concernsamésuch evaluation. Consideration is givenljatife length of time and the extent to which thie ¥alue has been lower
than carrying value, (2) the intent of the Comptmsell the investment prior to recovery in faitua(3) whether the Company will be more likelyrih#ot required to sell the
investment before the expected recovery in fain@a(4) and the expected future cash flows oftlkestment in relation to its amortized cost. Ulized losses on assets that are
considered other-than-temporary impairments aregmized in income and the cost basis of the assetadjusted.

(d) Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company'’s securitized residential mortgagedaae comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratesoaThe Company purchases pools of residentialgage loans
through a select group of originators. Mortgaagnk are designated as held for investment, redandérade date, and are carried at their prinddp&nce outstanding, plus any
premiums or discounts, less allowances for loasdss Interest income on loans held for investrizergcognized over the life of the investment udingeffective interest
method. Income recognition is suspended for le@man, in the opinion of management, a full recowarincome and principal becomes doubtful. Incaemdgnition is
resumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarghperformance is demonstrated to be resumed.Company estimates fair value of securitized laendescribed in No
5 of these consolidated financial statements.

(e) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is amebased on an evaluation of known and inhereks rislated t
the Company’s loan portfolio. The estimate is base a variety of factors including current econoronditions, industry loss experience, the loagimator’s loss experience,
credit quality trends, loan portfolio compositiatelinquency trends, national and local economicdse national unemployment data, changes in houapreciation or
depreciation and whether specific geographic andese the Company has significant loan concentrataye experiencing adverse economic conditionsgeadts such as
natural disasters that may affect the local econonproperty values. Upon purchase of the poolsars, the Company obtained written representatoswarranties from the
sellers that the Company could be reimbursed fwvtiue of the loan if the loan fails to meet tigee@d upon origination standards. While the Comeas little history of its
own to establish loan trends, delinquency trendt@briginators and the current market conditiaidsin determining the allowance for loan loss&€ee Company also
performed due diligence procedures on a sampleanfd that met its criteria during the purchasegssc The Company has created an unallocated mo¥@ possible loan
losses estimated as a percentage of the remairimgpgal on the loans. Management’s estimate getan historical experience of similarly undeneritpools.

When the Company determines it is probable thatiSpeontractually due amounts are uncollectilies amount is considered impaired. Where impaitrizen
indicated, a valuation write-off is measured baspdn the excess of the recorded investment ovenahéair value of the collateral, reduced by sellcosts. Any deficiency
between the carrying amount of an asset and theatest price of repossessed collateral is cham#tetallowance for loan losses.




(f) Repurchase Agreements
The Company may finance the acquisition of its gteeent securities through the use of repurchaseagents. Repurchase agreements are treated dsraditted
financing transactions and are carried at theitregtual amounts, including accrued interest, asifipd in the respective agreements.

(g) Securitized Debt

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarpertion of its residential mortgage loan portioliThe securitizations are collateralized by rest@l adjustable
or fixed rate mortgage loans or RMBS that have laced in a trust and pay interest and principahpents to the debt holders of that securitizatibhe Company’s
securitizations, which are accounted for as finagsj are recorded as an asset called “SecurititsIheld for investment” on the consolidated statgs of financial condition
and the corresponding debt as “Securitized digbtfie consolidated statements of financial conditi The Company estimates fair value of secudtidebt as described in Not:
to these consolidated financial statements.

(h) Fair Value Disclosure
A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdtie Company to fair value its financial instrurteeis included in Note 5 to these consolidatedrfaial
statements.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity

The Company may hedge interest rate risk througlusie of derivative financial instruments suchnésrest rate swaps. If the Company hedges ustegesst rate
swaps it accounts for these instruments as freastg derivatives. Accordingly, they are carriedadr value with realized and unrealized gains lrs$es recognized in
earnings.

The Company accounts for derivative financial imstents by recognizing all derivatives as eitheetsssr liabilities in the consolidated statemeritSrancial
condition and measuring those instruments at faine. Additionally, the fair value adjustmentseaffeither other comprehensive income (loss) iok$tolders’ equity until the
hedged item is recognized in earnings dependingta@ther the derivative instrument qualifies as dgeefor accounting purposes and, if so, the naifike hedging activity.

(i) Credit Risk
The Company retains the risk of potential credisks on all of the non-Agency residential mortdagas it owns as well as the residential mortgagas which
collateralize the RMBS it owns. The Company attenip mitigate the risk of potential credit lossieugh its due diligence in the asset selectiatess.

(k) Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionahich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgage loans and other assets. It may also seeuaihd re-
securitize financial assets. These transactioms@ounted for as either a “sale” and the loaftsfbe investment are removed from the consolidatatements of financial
condition or as a “financing” and are classified'@scuritized loans held for investment” on the Qamy’s consolidated statements of financial coadijtdepending upon the
structure of the securitization transaction. lesth securitizations and re-securitizations the Gmygometimes retains or acquires senior or subateli interests in the
securitized or re-securitized assets. Gains asgkbon such securitizations or re-securitizatmagecognized using a financial components apprtieat focuses on
control. Under this approach, after a transfdirancial assets, an entity recognizes the findrid servicing assets it controls and the ligb#iit has incurred, derecognizes
financial assets when control has been surrendaretiderecognizes liabilities when extinguished.

The Company determines the gain or loss on saieoofgage loans by allocating the carrying valuéhefunderlying mortgage loans between securitiégaors sold
and the interests retained based on their faireslas disclosed in Note 5 to these consolidatedhial statements. The gain or loss on saleeiglifference between the cash
proceeds from the sale and the amount allocattteteecurities or loans sold, net of transactigio

() Income Taxes

The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aackfbre it generally will not be subject to corperdederal, or state income tax to the extentdatifying
distributions are made to stockholders and the REtflirements, including certain asset, incomeyitligion and stock ownership tests are met. éf@ompany failed to qualify
as a REIT and did not qualify for certain statuteljef provisions, the Company would be subjedetteral, state and local income taxes and maydédygled from qualifying
as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable yeahsvilg the year in which the REIT qualification wast.




(m) Net Income (Loss) per Share

The Company calculates basic net income (loss$ipare by dividing net income (loss) for the petigdthe weighted-average shares of its common stattanding
for that period. Diluted net income (loss) perrshiakes into account the effect of dilutive instents, such as stock options, but uses the avstege price for the period in
determining the number of incremental shares tfeat@mbe added to the weighted average numberaséstoutstanding. The Company had no potentidllyive securities
outstanding during the periods presented.

(n) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiog €air value based methods which require the @om to measure the fair value of the equity inent
using the stock prices and other measurement assuns@s of the earlier of either the date at whaigierformance commitment by the counterpartyashed or the date at
which the counterparty’s performance is complé&@mpensation expense related to grants of stoclste#t options is recognized over the vesting pkoifosuch grants based
on the estimated fair value on the grant date.

(0) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial stegtiets in conformity with GAAP requires managementike estimates and assumptions that affect froetesl
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosureoafingent assets and reporting period. Actualltesould differ from those estimates.

(p) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

General Principles

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 105)

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Stasel&oard (“FASB”) update@he Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“Codification”) which revises the framework forlseting the accounting principles to be used ingreparation of financial statements that are prieske
in conformity with Generally Accepted Accountingritiiples (“GAAP”). The objective of the standasito establish the FASB ASC as the source of aitigttioe accounting
principles recognized by the FASB. Codificatioreffective for the Company for this September 3WM2PForm 10-Q. In adopting the Codification, alhrgrandfathered, non-
SEC accounting literature not included in the Cisdifon is superseded and deemed non-authorita@glification requires any references within therpany’s consolidated
financial statements be modified from FASB issweA$C. However, in accordance with the FASB AcdamgStandards Codification Notice to Constitugutg.0), the
Company will not reference specific sections of #4&C but will use broad topic references.

The Company’s recent accounting pronouncementgosdtas been reformatted to reflect the same orgéinhal structure as the ASC. Broad topic refeesrwill be
updated with pending content as it is released.

Assets

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC 320)

New guidance was provided to make impairment guidanore operational and to improve the presentatnehdisclosure of other-than-temporary impairments
(“OTTI") on debt and equity securities, as wellkeneficial interests in securitized financial asset financial statements. This was result of$EC mark-to-market study
mandated under the EESA. The SEC’s recommendaterto “evaluate the need for modifications (orehimination) of current OTTI guidance to provide & more uniform
system of impairment testing standards for finanogtruments.” The new guidance revises the Odvidluation methodology. Previously, the analytfoalis was on whether
the entity had the “intent and ability to retais ilhvestment in the debt security for a periodmaktsufficient to allow for any anticipated recoyén fair value.” Now the focus i
on whether the entity has the “intent to sell tebtdsecurity or, more likely than not, will be rémual to sell the debt security before recoveryt®fimortized cost basis.” Further,
the security is analyzed for credit losses (théed#ihce between the present value of cash flowsaggd to be collected and the amortized cost balife company does not
intend to sell the debt security, nor will it bejuéred to sell the debt security prior to its aipited recovery, the credit loss, if any, will Beognized in the statement of earnit
while the balance of impairment related to othetdes will be recognized in Other Comprehensiveime (“OCI”). If the company intends to sell thesgty, or more likely
than not will be required to sell the security vefeecovery of its amortized cost basis, the fullTOwill be recognized in the statement of earninghis guidance became
effective for the Company on June 30, 2009. Thaptdn of this standard did not result in a cumukaeffect adjustment to retained earnings in tééqgol of adoption but
changed the manner that the Company evaluatestineessecurities for other-than-temporary impairtaen




Other-than-temporary impairment has occurred ifelfeas been an adverse change in future estimasédflows and its impact reflected in current eagai The
determination cannot be overcome by managementrjedgof the probability of collecting all cash fleypreviously projected. The objective of otheartiemporary
impairment analysis is to determine whether itrizbable that the holder will realize some portidithe@ unrealized loss on an impaired security. tétado consider when maki
other-than-temporary impairment decision includerimation about past events, current conditionsseaable and supportable forecasts, remaining patyterens, financial
condition of the issuer, expected defaults, valuenderlying collateral, industry analysis, seatogdit rating, credit enhancement, and financialdition of the guarantor. The
Company’s non-Agency RMBS investments fall undés guidance and as such, the Company assessesezarhy for other-than-temporary impairments base@stimated
future cash flows. This guidance became effedtivéghe Company on December 31, 2008.

Broad Transactions

Consolidation (ASC 810)

On January 1, 2009, FASB amended the guidance mungenoneontrolling interests in consolidated financialtetaents, which requires the Company to n
certain changes to the presentation of its conatddl financial statements. This guidance requinesGompany to classify nasentrolling interests (previously referred tc
“minority interest”) as part of consolidated netame and to include the accumulated amount of mmtralling interests as part of stockholdeesgjuity. Similarly, in it
presentation of stockholders’ equity, the Compaistijuishes between equity amounts attributabledotrolling interest and amounts attributable te honeontrolling
interests — previously classified as minority iet#routside of stockholdersquity. For the quarter ended September 30, 20@9Company does not have any consolic
noncontrolling interests. In addition to these fio@l reporting changes, this guidance providessignificant changes in accounting related to nontrolling interest:
specifically, increases and decreases in its chingdinancial interests in consolidated subsidarwill be reported in equity similar to treasstpck transactions. If a change
ownership of a consolidated subsidiary resultsoss lof control and deconsolidation, any retainech@ghip interests are reeasured with the gain or loss reported ir
earnings.

FASB amended the consolidation standards in Juf8 B issuing SFAS No. 16Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46(R) . This standard has an effective «
of January 1, 2010. This standard has not yet memorporated into the ASC. While this remains +aathoritative until incorporated into the ASC, tetandard removes t
Qualified Special Purpose Entity (QSPE) exemptimmf the Variable Interest Entity (VIE) consolidatiguidance and therefore may have a material effie¢he consolidatic
of the Company'’s securitized assets.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

Effective January 1, 2009 and adopted by the Compasspectively, the FASB issued additional guidaattempting to improve the transparency of fifmgnc
reporting by mandating the provision of additiomd&brmation about how derivative and hedging atigi affect an entity’s financial position, finaatperformance and cash
flows. This guidance changed the disclosure requémts for derivative instruments and hedging digts/by requiring enhanced disclosure about (1 had why an entity uses
derivative instruments, (2) how derivative instrurtgeand related hedged items are accounted for3ritbw derivative instruments and related hedgeds affect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and clstvs. To adhere to this guidance, qualitativectisures about objectives and strategies for uenigatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts, gains arskken derivative instruments, and disclosurestatyedit-risk-related contingent features in detiaagreements must be
made. This disclosure framework is intended toehbetonvey the purpose of derivative use in terfrth®risks that an entity is intending to manage.
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Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In response to the deterioration of the credit ratrkFASB issued guidance clarifying how Fair Valleasurements should be applied when valuing désim
markets that are not active. The guidance prowaedustrative example, utilizing management'simial cash flow and discount rate assumptions whlenant observable data
do not exist. It further clarifies how observabiarket information and market quotes should be idensd when measuring fair value in an inactivekegr It reaffirms the
notion of fair value as an exit price as of the surament date and that fair value analysis isres&etional process and should not be broadly apfdi@ group of assets. The
guidance was effective June 30, 2009. The impleéatien this guidance did not have a material eféecthe fair value of the Company’s assets as thragany continued the
methodologies used in previous quarters to valsetasis defined under the original Fair Value stedsl

In October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilizafiot of 2008 (the “EESA”) was signed into law. cBen 133 of the EESA mandated that the SEC conauct
study on mark-to-market accounting standards. SIB€ provided its study to the U.S. Congress on bee 30, 2008. Part of the recommendations withénstudy indicated
that “fair value requirements should be improvewtigh development of application and best practigedance for determining fair value in illiquid mractive markets”. As a
result of this study and the recommendations thems April 9, 2009, the FASB issued additionaldguice for determining fair value when the volume kvel of activity for
the asset or liability have significantly decreasdwn compared with normal market activity for &eset or liability (or similar assets or liabilg)e The guidance gives specific
factors to evaluate if there has been a decreasermal market activity and if so, provides a melthlogy to analyze transactions or quoted pricesraakie necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is tcedmine the point within a range of fair value estigs that is most representative of fair value underent market
conditions. This guidance became effective forGaenpany on June 30, 2009 and had no material inguethe fair valuation of the investment secusitisvned by the
Company.

In August 2009, FASB issued Accounting Standardddtig (ASU) 2009-09Vieasuring Liabilities at Fair Value, regarding the fair value measurement of
liabilities. The standards update states thataeglprice for the identical liability when tradasl an asset in an active market is a Level 1 &irermeasurement. If the value
must be adjusted for factors specific to the lihithen the adjustment to the quoted price ofabget shall render the fair value measuremeihiedidbility a lower level
measurement. This standards update was effectived Company on October 1, 2009 and has no rahgdfect on the fair valuation of the Companyatiiities.

Financial Instruments (ASC 825)

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whidjurees disclosures about fair value of financiatioments for interim reporting periods as weliraannual
financial statements. The effective date of thiklgnce was for interim reporting periods endirtgrajune 15, 2009 with early adoption permittedprods ending after March
15, 2009. The adoption did not have any impadirancial reporting as all financial instruments aurrently reported at fair value in both intedmd annual periods.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)

General standards governing accounting for andadisce of events that occur after the balance sfetetbut before the financial statements are issuare availabl
to be issued were established in May 2009. ASCm6%ides guidance on the period after the balaheet date during which management of a reportitityeshould evaluate
events or transactions that may occur for potengiedgnition or disclosure in the financial statetsethe circumstances under which an entity shmeddgnize events or
transactions occurring after the balance sheetidate financial statements and the disclosuras &m entity should make about events or transaticcurring after the balance
sheet date. The Company evaluated subsequentsahemigh November 6, 2009.
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Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In February 2008, FASB issued guidance addresshmgher transactions where assets purchased frartiaytar counterparty and financed through a rejpase
agreement with the same counterparty can be caesidend accounted for as separate transactioase sequired to be considered “linked” transactiamd may be considered
derivatives. This guidance requires purchasessahdequent financing through repurchase agreerbertsnsidered linked transactions unless all ofdliewing conditions
apply: (1) the initial purchase and the use ofirepase agreements to finance the purchase asenactually contingent upon each other; (2) #urchase financing entered
into between the parties provides full recoursthéotransferee and the repurchase price is fig@dhe financial assets are readily obtainabliémarket; and (4) the financial
instrument and the repurchase agreement are rexwiobus. This guidance was effective for the Canypon January 1, 2009 and the implementation dichave a material
effect on the consolidated financial statementhiefCompany.

The accounting standards governing the transfesandcing of financial assets were amended in 2089, to be effective beginning January 1, 20Lbis
amendment will update the existing standard andiedite the concept of a Qualified Special Purpas#tye(“QSPE”); clarify the surrendering of contral effect sale treatment;
and modify the financial components approach -tiigithe circumstances in which a financial assegtastion thereof should be derecognized whenrduesteror maintains
continuing involvement. It defines the term “Paigiating Interest”.Under this standard update, the transferor musigreize and initially measure at fair value all assitaine:
and liabilities incurred as a result of a transfiecjuding any retained beneficial interest. Asttime, the Company continues to evaluate thecefiethis update on future
financial reporting.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following table represents the Company’s atbdgldor-sale RMBS portfolio as of September 30,280d December 31, 2008, at fair value.

September 30, 20( December 31, 200
Non-Agency Agency Non-Agency Agency
RMBS RMBS RMBS RMBS
(dollars in thousand:

Principal value $ 3,809,661 $ 1,740,400 $ 899,45¢ $ 233,97¢
Unamortized premiur 2,671 61,104 2,10t 6,35(
Unamortized discour (1,740,73) (29) (29,759 -
Gross unrealized ga 130,63: 23,31¢ 5,66¢ 2,03¢
Gross unrealized los (205,78)) (1,492 (274,369 -
Fair value $ 1,996,46! $ 1,823,30: $ 613,10 $ 242,36:

12




The following table presents the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s BMfBlength of time that such securities have hieen
continuous unrealized loss position at Septembe2B09 and December 31, 2008.

September 30, 20(
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Fair Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized
RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency $ 342,93¢ % (78,61) $ 543,15¢ $ (140,70) $ 886,09¢ $ (219,319
Agency 4,30( (1,4972) - - 4,30( (1,4972)
Total $ 347,23¢ $ (80,10) $ 543,15¢ $ (140,70) $ 890,39¢ $ (220,809)

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Fair Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized Estimated Fair Unrealized
RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency $ 855,467 $ (274,369 $ -0 % - % 855,467 $ (274,369
Agency - - - - - -
Total $ 855,46° $ (274,369 $ - % - $ 855,46° $ (274,369

The Company recorded a $2.2 million other-than-terafy impairment during the quarter on investmevtiere the expected future cash flows of certaimslibated
non-Agency RMBS were less than their amortized basts requiring credit impairment. The OTTI cleaveas attributed to ten subordinate securities aitlaggregate
amortized cost prior to the impairment of $12.3lionl. Seven of the ten subordinate securitiesrgto one non-Agency pool that has recorded onda30delinquency on the
assets collateralizing the pool from its inceptidkil securities for which OTTI impairment was reded during the period are cash flowing as expected

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesganeerally shorter than stated contractual maégitiActual maturities of the Company’s RMBS afe@éd by the
contractual lives of the underlying mortgages, gaid payments of principal and prepayments of @pialc The following tables summarize the ComparBMBS at September
30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 according to tlséimated weighted-average life classifications:

September 30, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos
Less than one ye: $ 443310 $ 411,65¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,47
Greater than one year and less than five y 1,283,23 1,354,24: 598,16: 584,94!
Greater than five yea 269,91( 305,71( 1,222,61! 1,214,06!
Total $ 1,096,460  $ 2,071,600 $ 1,823,300 $ 1,801,48:

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos
Less than one ye: $ - % - $ - $ -
Greater than one year and less than five y 525,80: 735,50¢ 242,36: 240,32¢
Greater than five yea 87,304 146,30( - -
Total $ 613,10! $ 881,80¢ $ 242,36:  $ 240,32t
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The weighted-average lives of the mortgage-backedrgties at September 30, 2009 and December 3B 20the tables above are based on data providedgh
dealer quotes, assuming constant prepayment matke balloon or reset date for each security. ffie@ayment model considers current yield, forwaett, steepness of the
curve, current mortgage rates, mortgage rateseobtitstanding loan, loan age, margin and volatility

The RMBS portfolio has the following characteristat September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

September 30, 20( Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS Secured Loan
Weighted average cost ba $54.38 $103.51 $101.01
Weighted average fair value ( $52.41 $104.76 $101.01
Weighted average coup 5.39% 5.51% 6.11%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 26.67% 28.78% 3.50%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 35.48% 0.00% 4.70%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 17.34% 15.27% 20.98%
December 31, 200 Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS Secured Loan
Weighted average cost ba $98.01 $102.71 $101.03
Weighted average fair value ( $68.16 $103.58 $101.03
Weighted average coupt 5.97% 6.69% 5.95%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 1.30% 13.70% 15.00%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 51.20% 0.00% 18.80%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 12.50% 14.50% 7.80%

(1) Secured loans are carried at amortized |
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of printtiptwill be prepaid over the next three monthséal on historical principal paydow:

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to craiik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit righktigh its asset selection process. The investsemntrities
contained in this portion of the portfolio have foowing collateral characteristics at Septem®@y 2009 and December 31, 2008.

September 30, 20! December 31, 20(
Number of securities in portfoli 179.C 30.C
Weighted average loan age in mor 29.7 22.1
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 73.&% 74.2%
Weighted average FIC 715.¢ 717.%
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa 429.C 394.c
Weighted average percentage owner occu 83.(% 77.€%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 60.5% 54.8%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 20.8% 25.2%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 57. 1% CA 53.(%
FL 13.4% FL 10.€%
NY 4.6% AZ 8.2%
MD 4.0% NV 5.6%
NJ 3.5% NJ 4.1%

On July 30, 2009, the Company transferred $1.%ohilin principal value of its RMBS to the JPMRT 200 Trust in a resecuritization transaction. In this transact
the Company sold $166.3 million of AAA-rated fixadd floating rate bonds to third party investord egalized a gain on the sale of approximately $7ilBon. The Company
retained $690.6 million of AAA-rated bonds, $66&8lion in subordinated bonds and the owner trestificate. The subordinated bonds and the ownust tertificate provide
credit support to the AAA-rated bonds. The borsdsiéd by the trust are collateralized by RMBS liaae been transferred to the JPMRT 2009-7 Trushs&juent to the
closing date of this re-securitization and prioSgptember 30, 2009, the Company sold an additi&B&08.7 million of the AAA-rated bonds and realizedain on the sale of
approximately $59.4 million.

On September 30, 2009, the Company transferredifllioh in principal value of its RMBS to the CMSZD09-12R Trust in a re-securitization transactitmthis
transaction, the Company sold $260.6 million of Afated fixed and floating rate bonds to third pantyestors and realized a gain on sale of approdiyn&5.2 million. The
Company retained $655.0 million of AAA-rated bon#i815.1 million in subordinated bonds and the ovinest certificate. The subordinated bonds andtheer trust
certificate provide credit support to the AAA-ratiednds. The bonds issued by the trust are codiieed by RMBS that have been transferred to thBIC2009-12R Trust.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, tmep@oy sold RMBS with a carrying value of $32.1 raill for realized gains of $2.4 million. During thearter
ended September 30, 2008, the Company sold RMBSandarrying value of $432.6 million for realizexs$es of approximately $113.1 million and termidatgerest rate swa
with a notional value of $983.4 million, for readit losses of approximately $10.5 million. Durihg tjuarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company soBSRWMth a carrying
value of $84.6 million for realized gains of $9.8lion.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s s¢ized residential mortgage loans classified as f@lithvestment at September 30, 2009 and DeceBiher
2008. At September 30, 2009, approximately 57¥hefCompany’s securitized loans are adjustablemategage loans and 43% are fixed rate mortgagesloall of the
adjustable rate loans held for investment are kyédiustable rate mortgages (“ARMs”). Hybrid ARBI® mortgages that have interest rates that agd foxr an initial period
(typically three, five, seven or ten years) andehéer reset at regular intervals subject to aderate caps. The loans held for investmentamged at their principal balance
outstanding less an allowance for loan losses:

September 30, 20! December 31, 20(

(dollars in thousand:
Securitized mortgage loans, at principal bale $ 501,94t $ 584,96°
Less: allowance for loan loss 3,031 1,621
Securitized loans held for investme $ 498,91 $ 583,34t

The following table summarizes the changes in tlsvance for loan losses for the securitized magegan portfolio during the nine months ended &epier 30,
2009 and September 30, 2008:

September 30, 20( September 30, 20(
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 1621 $ 81
Provision for loan losse 1,41C 60C
Charge-offs - -
Balance, end of peric $ 3,031 $ 681

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses. The Corgjsaallowance for loan losses for the nine monthdesl
September 30, 2009 was $3.0 million, representingasis points of the principal balance of the Canys securitized mortgage loan portfolio. The @amy’s allowance for
loan losses was $0.7 million for the nine monthdeehSeptember 30, 2008, representing 12 basisspafithe principal balance of the Company’s seiart loan portfolio. At
September 30, 2009, 0.60% of the securitized lbaidfor investment were greater than 60 days deént and 1.37% were in some stage of foreclosfiseof December 31,
2008, 0.12% of the securitized loans held for itwent were greater than 60 days delinquent andawslwere in foreclosure.

5. Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneiag fair value, establishes a three-level vadmatierarchy
for disclosure of fair value measurement and endswdcsclosure requirements for fair value measunesnel he valuation hierarchy is based upon thesparency of inputs to
the valuation of an asset or liability as of theasi@ement date. The three levels are definedlasvi

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdlities in active markets.
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Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwguoted prices for similar assets and liabiliteactive markets, and inputs that are observialthe asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for subetially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology anehservable and significant to fair value.
The following discussion describes the methodolegidized by the Company to fair value its finaldénstruments by instrument class.

Short-term Instruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentspad interest receivable, dividends payable, attsopayable, and accrued interest payable genexaisoximates
estimated fair value due to the short term natfiteese financial instruments.

Non-Agency and Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of its inwestt securities utilizing a pricing model that inporates such factors as coupon, prepayment spgeisted
average life, collateral composition, borrower eltderistics, expected interest rates, life capgogie caps, reset dates, collateral seasoningg@rf losses, expected default
severity, credit enhancement, and other pertirestbfs. Management reviews the fair values geeetay the model to determine whether prices ateatdfe of the current
market. Management performs a validation of tikeviaue calculated by the pricing model by compagrits results to independent prices provided kalats in the securities
and/or third party pricing services.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time, the observability of priaed inputs can be reduced for certain instrumelfitdealers or
independent pricing services are unable to proaigece for an asset, or if the price providedhmnt is deemed unreliable by the Company, thengbetavill be valued at its
fair value as determined in good faith by the Conypaln addition, validating third party pricingrfthe Company’s investments may be more subjeetiviewer participants
may be willing to provide this service to the Comypalllliquid investments typically experience gieaprice volatility as a ready market does nosexAs fair value is not an
entity specific measure and is a market based appravhich considers the value of an asset or ifglfiibm the perspective of a market participaftservability of prices and
inputs can vary significantly from period to period condition such as this can cause instrumentetreclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Leféb Level 3 when the
Company is unable to obtain third party pricingifieation.

If at the valuation date, the fair value of an isiveent security is less than its amortized cottetlate of the consolidated statement of finarc@adition, the
Company analyzes the investment security for oth@n-temporary impairment. Management evaluae£tmpany’s RMBS for other-than-temporary impairtrarieast on a
quarterly basis, and more frequently when econamimarket concerns warrant such evaluation. Cenatibn is given to (1) the length of time and éixéent to which the fair
value has been lower than carrying value, (2) tibenit of the Company to sell the investment prioreicovery in fair value (3) whether the Companiyf bé more likely than not
required to sell the investment before the expexedvery, (4) and the expected future cash flofth@investment in relation to its amortized coshrealized losses on assets
that are considered other-than-temporary impairsare recognized in earnings and the cost basiedassets are adjusted.

At September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, thep@oy has classified its RMBS as “Level 2”. Thar@any'’s financial assets and liabilities carriefbatvalue
on a recurring basis are valued at September 3® a¢ follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency mortgag-backed securitie $ - % 1,996,461 $ -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie $ - % 1,823,30i $ -

As of the quarter ended September 30, 2009, thep@nynwas able to obtain third party pricing veatfion for all assets classified as Level 2. Thessification of
assets and liabilities by level remains unchange&keptember 30, 2009, when compared to the pregjoader. In the aggregate, the Company’s fdirateoon of RMBS
investments were 0.78% higher than the aggregatattdmarks.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment
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The Company records securitized loans held fordtment when it securitizes loans and records #resgction as a “financing.” The Company carriesisgzed
loans held for investment at principal value, ppusmiums or discounts paid, less an allowancedan losses. The Company fair values its secudifigens held for investment
by estimating future cash flows of the underlyisgets. The Company models each underlying ass=irsjidering, among other items, the structurdefunderlying security,
coupon, servicer, actual and expected defaultsghand expected default severities, reset indexes prepayment speeds in conjunction with mastarch for similar
collateral performance and management’s expecttibgeneral economic conditions in the sectorgmedter economy.

Repurchase Agreements

The Company records repurchase agreements attrgnactual amounts including accrued interest peyaRepurchase agreements are collateralizedding
transactions utilized by the Company to acquire@gstment securities. Due to the short term natiitleese financial instruments, the Company estithéte fair value of these
repurchase agreements to be the contractual dbligalius accrued interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes sold in securitization or re-secutitizatransactions treated as “financings” pursuamSC 860. The
Company carries securitized debt at the principdditice outstanding on non-retained notes assoaiatiedts securitized loans held for investmentspfuwemiums or discounts
recorded with the sale of the notes to third parti€he premiums or discounts associated withdleaf the notes or certificates are amortized dvetlife of the instrument. TI
Company estimates the fair value of securitized dgkestimating the future cash flows associateti wnderlying assets collateralizing the securdat datstanding. The
Company models each underlying asset by consideaimgng other items, the structure of the undeglgiecurity, coupon, servicer, actual and expecétaudts, actual and
expected default severities, reset indices, andgyraent speeds in conjunction with market resefmchimilar collateral performance and managemestjsectations of general
economic conditions in the sector and greater evgno

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value of the Company’s financiatioments at September 30, 2009 and December B8&; 20

September 30, 20( December 31, 200
Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency RMBS $ 2,071,60¢ $ 1,996,46/ $ 881,80¢ $ 613,10¢
Agency RMBS 1,801,48! 1,823,30:i 240,32t 242,36:
Securitized loans held for investme¢ 498,91! 496,89: 583,34t 577,89:
Repurchase agreemel 1,597,31! 1,598,78I 562,11¢ 562,16
Securitized dek 414,33¢ 433,41¢ 488,74 510,79¢

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regttlyy management to ensure the changes are agteopgks markets and products develop and the gricin
certain products becomes more transparent, the @oynpill continue to refine its valuation methodgies. The methods used may produce a fair valwlledion that may not
be indicative of net realizable value or reflectofduture fair values. Furthermore, while the Canyp believes its valuation methods are appropéaateconsistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodi@s, or assumptions, to determine the fair vafuzedain financial instruments could result iniiedent estimate of fair value
at the reporting date. The Company uses inputsatieacurrent as of the measurement date, whichincayde periods of market dislocation, during whprice transparency m
be reduced.

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.6 billion and $563llion of repurchase agreements with weightedage borrowing rates of 0.57% and 1.43% and wetghte
average remaining maturities of 16 and 2 days &epfember 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, regplyctiAt September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2ROBS pledged as
collateral under these repurchase agreements hestiamted fair value of $1.6 billion and $680.8liom, respectively. The interest rates of thegurchase agreements are
generally indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate angnice accordingly.
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At September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, theckase agreements collateralized by RMBS hatbtlmeving remaining maturities:

September 30, 20! December 31, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight 153,07¢(1) $ -
1-30 days 1,444,24: 562,1141)
30 to 59 day: - -
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: - -
Total 1,597,311  $ 562,11¢

(1) Repurchase agreements with affilic

At September 30, 2009, the Company did not havenaount at risk greater than 10% of its equity vaitly counterparty. At December 31, 2008 the Compeauyan

amount at risk of approximately 29% of its equityhnAnnaly, an affiliate.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the company’s securitized debt is collatezatl by residential mortgage loans. For finanglorting purposes, the Company’s securitized te#dtcounted for
as a financing. Thus, the residential mortgageddheld as collateral are recorded in the as§éte @ompany as securitized loans held for investnand the securitized debt

recorded as a liability in the statements of finahcondition.

The following table presents the estimated prinaippayment schedule of the securitized debt helthe Company outstanding at September 30, 200Dacdmber

31, 2008:
September 30, 20! December 31, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal 4,05 $ 65,56
One to Three Yeal 8,92¢ 112,74!
Three to Five Year 10,11( 85,95t
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 410,32! 246,53!
Total 433,414 $ 510,79¢

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt angeshelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their repayment is basestbeduled
principal payments on the underlying loans. Thigeate will differ from actual amounts to the ext@nepayments and/or loan losses are experienced.

As of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 200&;dinepany had no off balance sheet credit risk.

At September 30, 2009, the Company’s securitizéd dellateralized by residential mortgage loans aaulincipal balance of $414.3 million. The delattares
between the years 2015 and 2038. At Septembe&0B®, the debt carried a weighted average coshaf€ing equal to 5.63%, that is secured by resigdlemortgage loans of
which approximately 43% of the remaining principalance pays a fixed rate of 6.33% and 57% oféh®aining principal balance pays a variable rate.64%. At December
31, 2008, securitized debt collateralized by residé mortgage loans had a principal balance oB8$a&nillion. At December 31, 2008, the debt cat@eweighted average cost

of financing equal to 5.55%, of which approximaté#gs of the remaining principal balance is a fixate at 6.32% and 56% of the remaining princip&hee at a variable rate
of 5.65%.

8. Common Stock

On September 24, 2009, the Company adopted a divicEnvestment and share purchase plan (“DRSPR{g DRSPP provides holders of record of the Compan
s common stock an opportunity to automatically vest all or a portion of their cash distributioeseived on common stock in additional shares afdtemon stock as well as
make optional cash payments to purchase sharésa@immon stock. Persons who are not already stdd&is may also purchase the Company ' s commak stoder the plan
through optional cash payments. The DRSPP isrmidtaied by the Administrator, The Bank of New Ydfkllon. To date there have been no transactiodguthe DRSPP.
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On May 27, 2009, the Company announced the salé&D00,000 shares of common stock at $3.22 pee $baestimated proceeds, less the underwritéssodint
and offering expenses, of $519.3 million. Immesliafollowing the sale of these shares Annaly pasel 4,724,017 shares at the same price per shtre public offering, for
proceeds of approximately $15.2 million. In addition June 1, 2009 the underwriters exercised ptieroto purchase up to an additional 25,200,0@0eshof common stock to
cover over-allotments for proceeds, less the undems’ discount, of approximately $77.9 millionh&se sales were completed on June 2, 2009. lh@lCompany raised net
proceeds of approximately $612.4 million in thefferings.

On May 22, 2009, the Company filed an amendmeitstarticles of Incorporation. The Company’s Atés of Incorporation previously allowed the Compémy
issue up to a total of 550,000,000 shares of dagiitak, par value $0.01 per share. As of May2f®)9, the Company had 472,401,769 shares of consiock issued and
outstanding. To retain the ability to issue addisil shares of capital stock, the Company has asee the number of shares it is authorized to igs@¢gl00,000,000 shares
consisting of 1,000,000,000 shares of common s%@ld1 par value per common share, and 100,00&0&@s of preferred stock, $0.01 par value peemed share.

On April 15, 2009, the Company announced the sa®35,000,000 shares of common stock at $3.00pEesfor estimated proceeds, less the underwritiéssbunt
and offering expenses, of $674.8 million. Immeeliafollowing the sale of these shares Annaly pasgud 24,955,752 shares at the same price perahé#re public offering, fc
proceeds of approximately $74.9 million. In addition April 16, 2009 the underwriters exerciseddpgon to purchase up to an additional 35,2504t4res of common stock
to cover over-allotments for proceeds, less theenmdters’ discount, of approximately $101.3 mitlioThese sales were completed on April 21, 200%ll| the Company raised
net proceeds of approximately $850.9 in these ioffst

On October 24, 2008, the Company announced theo§atE0,000,000 shares of common stock at $2.25Ip@re for estimated proceeds, less the underaliriter
discount and offering expenses, of $237.9 milliommediately following the sale of these sharesn#in purchased 11,681,415 shares at the samepaicghare as the public
offering, for proceeds of approximately $26.3 roifli In addition, on October 28, 2008 the undepwsiexercised the option to purchase up to aniaddit16,500,000 shares of
common stock to cover over-allotments for procetsls the underwritersliscount, of approximately $35.8 million. Theséesavere completed on October 29, 2008. In &l
Company'’s raised net proceeds of approximately $288llion.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaramyf September 30, 2009 or December 31, 2008.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, tmep@oy declared dividends to common shareholdeatingt$80.3 million or $0.12 per share, which wpaéd on
October 30, 2009. During the nine months endede®aper 30, 2009, the Company declared dividendstamon shareholders totaling $128.6 million or $Q2r share.

9. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentaes and employees of FIDAC and its affiliatesstionulate
their efforts towards the Company’s continued sesckbng-term growth and profitability and to attraeward and retain personnel and other servieeigers. The incentive
plan authorizes the Compensation Committee of ttaof directors to grant awards, including ineenstock options, non-qualified stock optionstrieted shares and other
types of incentive awards. The specific award g@mo each individual was based upon, in partjttividual’s position within FIDAC, the individua position within the
Company, his or her contribution to the Compangdgg@rmance, market practices, as well as the recamdations of FIDAC. The incentive plan authorites granting of
options or other awards for an aggregate of thatgreof 8.0% of the outstanding shares of the Cawyipacommon stock up to a ceiling of 53,625,988reba

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restratterk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE's employees and the Company’s independent
directors. The awards to the independent directested on the date of grant and the awards to ElBAmployees vest quarterly over a period of 1&ye Of these shares, as
of September 30, 2009, 237,575 shares have veste#13007 shares were forfeited or cancelled. utte three months ended September 30, 2009, 32f2&2es vested and
928 shares were forfeited. There have been nofiveeawards granted since January 2, 2008.
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As of September 30, 2009, there was $19.4 milliototl unrecognized compensation cost relatecbtovested share-based compensation arrangementedyra
under the long term incentive plan. That cost jseeted to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoef 8.0 years. The total fair value of sharestee during the quarter
ended September 30, 2009 was $123,100.

10. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Federabiime tax to the extent that it makes qualifyindribstions to its stockholders, and provided iisfas on a
continuing basis, through actual investment andaipey results, the REIT requirements includingaierasset, income, distribution and stock ownersists. Most states
recognize REIT status as well. During the quagteted September 30, 2009, the Company recordaettome tax expense related to state and feder&btzilties on
undistributed income. During the year ended Deaarhh, 2008, the Company recorded $12,431 in incaxexpense related to state and federal taXitiabion undistributed
income.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarettidy_ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttaxrkholders for income tax purposes. From timgnte, a
portion of the Company’s dividends may be charéteras capital gains or return of capital. Dutiing quarter ended September 30, 2009 the Compxtinyates that all
income distributed in the form of dividends will bearacterized as ordinary income. For the quarnided September 30, 2008, all income distributetie form of dividends
was characterized as ordinary income.

11. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to credit risk in connection with itséstments in
residential mortgage loans and credit sensitiveigage-backed securities. When the Company asstieeis risk, it attempts to minimize interest ratk through asset
selection, hedging and matching the income earnadartgage assets with the cost of related liadslit The Company is subject to interest rate psiknarily in connection witl
its investments in fixed-rate and adjustable-ratetgage-backed securities, residential mortgagesioand borrowings under repurchase agreements.Cdmpany attempts to
minimize credit risk through due diligence and assdection. The Company'’s strategy is to purchaaes underwritten to agreed-upon specificatidreetected originators in
an effort to mitigate credit risk. The Company kagablished a whole loan target market includirig@ borrowers with FICO scores generally greatant650, Alt-A
documentation, geographic diversification, ownectged property, and moderate loan to value rafioese factors are considered to be importantéatalis of credit risk.

12. Management Agreement and Related Party Transtions

The Company has entered into a management agreevitieritlDAC, which provides for an initial term thmgh December 31, 2010 with an automatic one-year
extension option and subject to certain terminatights. The Company pays FIDAC a quarterly manzeygt fee equal to 1.75% per annum of the grosskBtdders’'Equity (as
defined in the management agreement) of the Compifanagement fees accrued and subsequently p&idD#C for the quarter ending September 30, 2009 2008 were
$8.6 million and $1.7 million, respectively.

On October 13, 2008, the Company and FIDAC ametigdedhanagement agreement to reduce the base maewtgem from 1.75% per annum to 1.50% per annum
of the Company'’s stockholders’ equity and providat the incentive fees may be in cash or shardseg€ompany’s common stock, at the election ofGbepany’s board of
directors.

On October 19, 2008, the Company and FIDAC furireended the management agreement to provide thaidéntive fee be eliminated in its entirety andAC
receive only the management fee of 1.50% per ansfuile Company'’s stockholders’ equity. From therany’s inception to termination of the incentiee in October 2008,
the Company had not paid incentive fees.
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The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreememiddition, the management agreement permits FIDAC t
require the Company to pay for its pro rata portibrent, telephone, utilities, office furnitureguepment, machinery and other office, internal andrhead expenses that FIDAC
incurred in the operation of the Company. Thegeeages are allocated between FIDAC and the Comipassd on the ratio of the Company’s proportionrobg assets
compared to all remaining gross assets manageddAG-as calculated at each quarter end. FIDACthedCompany will modify this allocation methodoyogubject to the
Company’s board of directors’ approval if the ation becomes inequitable (i.e., if the Companyob@es very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC's ofhads and
accounts). FIDAC has waived its right to requeghbursement from the Company of these expensdssuoh time as it determines to rescind that waive

During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, 3%Rafes of restricted stock issued by the CompaRyRAC’s employees vested, as discussed in Note 9.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association stadgeeprinted form Master Repurchase Agreement with
Annaly. This standard agreement does not contairsart of liquidity, net worth or other similarpggs of positive or negative covenants. Ratheragreement contains
covenants that require the buyer and seller ofritéezito deliver collateral or securities, and gamcovenants which are customary in the form Ma&epurchase
Agreement. As of September 30, 2009, the Compas/fimancing $153.1 million under this agreemera aighted average rate of 1.74%. At DecembeRBQ8, the
Company was financing $562.1 million under thisegnent at a weighted average rate of 1.43%. Thep@oy has been in compliance with all covenanthisfagreement
since it entered into this agreement.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become involmedarious claims and legal actions arising indhéinary course of business. Management is noteafany
reported or unreported contingencies at Septenfe2(®9.

14. Subsequent Events
There were no material recognized or unrecogniz®dequent events through November 6, 2009, thealdateonsolidated financial statements were avisléd be

released.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION:

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat tare subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseafrd-looking statements include information abmagsible or
assumed future results of our business, finanoiadlition, liquidity, results of operations, plansdabjectives. When we use the words “believégxpect,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” “intend,” * ‘should,” “may,” “would,” “will” or similar expressions, we intend to identify forwdobking statements. Statements regar
the following subjects, among others, are forwamking by their nature:

. our business and investment strategy;

. our projected financial and operating results;

. our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andeimas of such arrangements;
. general volatility of the securities markets in ehive invest;

. the implementation, timing and impact of, and clen®, various government programs, including tBeDépartment of the Treasusyplan to buy Agency resident
mortgag-backed securities, the Term As-Backed Securities Loan Facility and the Pi-Private Investment Prograt

. our expected investments;

. changes in the value of our investments;

. interest rate mismatches between our mortgage-tdasseurities and our borrowings used to fund suchhases;
. changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayrats; r

. effects of interest rate caps on our adjustablerairtgage-backed securities;

. rates of default or decreased recovery rates omgastments;

. prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backed isiesyr
. the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

. impact of and changes in governmental regulatitansiaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simiktters;
. availability of investment opportunities in reatas-related and other securities;

. availability of qualified personnel;

. estimates relating to our ability to make distribos to our stockholders in the future;

. our understanding of our competition; and

. market trends in our industry, interest rates,délet securities markets or the general economy.
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The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsebssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all information antly
available to us. You should not place undue rebamt these forward-looking statements. These Iseliessumptions and expectations can change aslaafesiany possible
events or factors, not all of which are known to$sme of these factors are described under theodfRisk Factors” in our most recent Annual Repon Form 10-K and any
subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. Ifamgk occurs, our business, financial conditiomiidiy and results of operations may vary mateyifibm those expressed in
our forward-looking statements. Any forward-lookisigitement speaks only as of the date on whishnitade. New risks and uncertainties arise from tortéme, and it is
impossible for us to predict those events or hosy tmay affect us. Except as required by law, veenart obligated to, and do not intend to, updatevise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new informafidgnre events or otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that investesidential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBSidemntial mortgage loans, real estate related gesuand
various other asset classes. We are externallpgeghby Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company,aluhive refer to as FIDAC. FIDAC is a fixed-incormyéstment
management company specializing in managing investsrin Agency RMBS, which are mortgage pass-thiaagtificates, collateralized mortgage obligatioosCMOs, and
other mortgage-backed securities representingésitiin or obligations backed by pools of mortgages issued or guaranteed by the Federal NatMoetgage Association, or
Fannie Mae, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corjporadr Freddie Mac, and the Government Nationattlyige Association, or Ginnie Mae.

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT for federal income tax purposes commenwiitiy our taxable year ending on December 31, 20Dur
targeted asset classes and the principal invessmenexpect to make in each are as follows:

. RMBS, consisting of:
0 Non-Agency RMBS, including investme-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe
o  Agency RMBS
. Whole mortgage loans, consisting of:
o  Prime mortgage loar
0 Jumbo prime mortgage loa
o  Alt-A mortgage loan
. Asset Backed Securities, or ABS, consisting of:
o  Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CME
o Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigaitions, or CDO:
o  Consumer and ni-consumer ABS, including investm«-grade and nc-investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

We completed our initial public offering on Novernt24, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremtate offering we raised net proceeds of approxatya$533.6
million. We completed a second public offering aedond private offering on October 29, 2008.hkst offerings we raised net proceeds of approein&801.0
million. During the second quarter 2009, we cortgalea third public offering and third private offeg on April 21, 2009, and a fourth public offeringd fourth private offering
June 2, 2009. In these offerings, we raised retgeds of approximately $851.0 million and $612ilion, respectively, and we have completed invggtihese proceeds.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, grity through dividends and secondarily throughitzdp
appreciation. We intend to achieve this objechiyenvesting in a broad class of financial assetsanstruct an investment portfolio that is destyt@achieve attractive risk-
adjusted returns and that is structured to comjilly the various federal income tax requirementsREIT status and to maintain our exemption fromltheestment Company
Act of 1940, or the 1940 Act.

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and on purchasing residential
mortgage loans that have been originated by skightquality originators, including the retail ldnd operations of leading commercial banks. Ouegtment portfolio is
weighted toward non-Agency RMBS. We expect thardhe near term our investment portfolio will done to be weighted toward RMBS, subject to mamitej our REIT
qualification and our 1940 Act exemption. In addif we have engaged in and depending on markelitiams, anticipate continuing to engage in tratisas with residential
mortgage lending operations of leading commeraakis and other high-quality originators in which identify and re-underwrite residential mortgagens owned by such
entities, and rather than purchasing and secunifiguich residential mortgage loans ourselves, wdtanoriginator would structure the securitizatéon we would purchase the
resulting mezzanine and subordinate non-Agency RMB@ may also engage in similar transactions with-Agency RMBS in which we would acquire AAA-ratedn-
Agency RMBS and re-securitize those securities. wilield sell some or all of the resulting AAA-ratB#1BS and retain some of the AAA-rated RMBS and pthbordinate
bonds and interests.
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Our investment strategy is intended to take adegntd opportunities in the current interest ratd aredit environment. We will adjust our stratégychanging
market conditions by shifting our asset allocatiansoss these various asset classes as interesingtredit cycles change over time. We belieaedur strategy, combined
with FIDAC's experience, will enable us to pay dighds and achieve capital appreciation throughloaniging market cycles. We expect to take a long-ieew of assets and
liabilities, and our reported earnings and markvriaket valuations at the end of a financial repgrperiod will not significantly impact our objea#i of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the lemngy.

We use leverage to seek to increase our poteetiains and to fund the acquisition of our assésr income is generated primarily by the differermenet spread,
between the income we earn on our assets and shefcour borrowings. We expect to finance ouristments using a variety of financing sources dliolg repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatioosymercial paper and term financing CDOs. We mawage our debt by utilizing interest rate hedgesh s interest rate
swaps, to reduce the effect of interest rate flatbbms related to our debt.

Recent Developmen

We commenced operations in November 2007 in thetoiichallenging market conditions which affectied cost and availability of financing from theifdies with
which we expected to finance our investments. &hestruments included repurchase agreements, aaselfacilities, securitizations, asset-backed ceroial paper,
(“ABCP"), and term CDOs. The liquidity crisis wiicommenced in August 2007 affected each of thesees—and their individual providers—to differeieigrees; some
sources generally became unavailable, some remairaldble but at a high cost, and some were lgngehffected. For example, in the repurchase ageeémarket, non-
Agency RMBS became harder to finance, dependintheype of assets collateralizing the RMBS. Theant, term and margin requirements associatedtivitbe types of
financings were also impacted. At that time, warede facilities to finance whole loan prime resitE@mmortgages were generally available from majanks, but at significant
higher cost and had greater margin requirementspgheviously offered. It was also extremely difflicto term finance whole loans through securitaabr bonds issued by a
CDO structure. Financing using ABCP froze as issbecame unable to place (or roll) their secwgitiehich resulted, in some instances, in forcedssaf mortgage-backed
securities, or MBS, and other securities whichHertnegatively impacted the market value of thesets.

Although the credit markets had been undergoingmtuibulence, as we started ramping up our podfioliate 2007, we noted a slight easing. We endtérto a
number of repurchase agreements we could useandRMBS. In January 2008, we entered into twolevmortgage loan repurchase agreements. As wantiegsee the
availability of financing, we were also seeing betinderwriting standards used to originate newtgagres. We commenced buying and financing RMBSadsmlentered into
agreements to purchase whole mortgage loans. \Wbased high credit quality assets which we betlave would be readily able to finance.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eigreed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeséeleeity of the limitation on liquidity was largely
unanticipated by the markets. Credit once agairef and in the mortgage market, valuations ofAgency RMBS and whole mortgage loans came underequessure. Th
credit crisis began in early February 2008, whéeavily leveraged investor announced that it hadktéever and liquidate a portfolio of approximst®B0 billion of non-
Agency RMBS. Prices of these types of securitreppled dramatically, and lenders started lowerliregprices on non-Agency RMBS that they held asatedél to secure the
loans they had extended. The subsequent failuaich 2008 of Bear Stearns & Co. worsened théscrids the year progressed, deterioration in #ilevialue of our assets
continued, we received and met margin calls underepurchase agreements, which resulted in owiriby additional funding from third parties, inding from Annaly Capit:
Management, Inc. (“Annaly”), an affiliate, and tagiother steps to increase our liquidity.

The challenges of the first half of 2008 have awntid throughout 2008 and so far into 2009, as €&imandifficulties have severely pressured liquicityd asset
values. In September 2008, Lehman Brothers Hofdiigs., @ major investment bank, experienced anligjuidity crisis and failed. Securities tradirgmains limited and
mortgage securities financing markets remain chglhgg as the industry continues to report negataws. This dislocation in the non-Agency mortgagetor has made it
difficult for us to obtain short-term financing éewvorable terms. As a result, we have complated kecuritizations in order to obtain long-ternaficing and terminated our un-
utilized whole loan repurchase agreements in aalaroid paying non-usage fees under those agréembmaddition, we have continued to seek fundiogn Annaly. Under
these circumstances, we expect to take actionsdateto protect our liquidity, which may includelueing borrowings and disposing of assets as wealhiing capital.
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During this period of market dislocation, fiscadamonetary policymakers have established new litfécilities for primary dealers and commercialnks, reduced
short-term interest rates, and passed legislalianis intended to address the challenges of mgetbarrowers and lenders. This legislation, theditamand Economic Recovery
Act of 2008, seeks to forestall home foreclosucegifstressed borrowers and assist communitiesfaititlosure problems.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, there were increaaddéhtoncerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Médisyeo withstand future credit losses associatétth
securities held in their investment portfolios, amdwhich they provide guarantees, without theaiseipport of the federal government. In Septen26€8 Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac were placed into the conservatorshib@federal Housing Finance Agency, or FHFA, tfegieral regulator, pursuant to its powers unde Féderal Housing
Finance Regulatory Reform Act of 2008, a part ef ifousing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008. Asdbnservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, theA-ebntrols and
directs the operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie &l may (1) take over the assets of and opeeatri€ Mae and Freddie Mac with all the powers efghareholders, the
directors, and the officers of Fannie Mae and Feetithc and conduct all business of Fannie Mae aeddte Mac; (2) collect all obligations and moneyedo Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functions of Fanniedvend Freddie Mac which are consistent with theseprator's appointment; (4) preserve and consdéwassets and property
of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; and (5) contraca&sistance in fulfilling any function, activityctéon or duty of the conservator. A primary fo@fghis new legislation is to
increase the availability of mortgage financingatpwing Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to continugrtaw their guarantee business without limit, whitkeiting net purchases
mortgage-backed securities to a modest amountghrthe end of 2009. It is currently planned for iarMae and Freddie Mac to reduce gradually theirtgage-backed
securities portfolios beginning in 2010.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of iHarMae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. Departmerfreisury and FHFA have entered into preferreckstoc
purchase agreements between the U.S. Departm@&ne¢adury, or the Treasury, and Fannie Mae and kgéddc pursuant to which the Treasury will ensina each of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a positive net wdiiththe Treasury has established a new securatifg credit facility which will be available to Raie Mae, Freddie Mac,
and the Federal Home Loan Banks, which is intetdestrve as a liquidity backstop, which will be igaale until December 2009; and (iii) the Treashags initiated a temporary
program to purchase RMBS issued by Fannie Mae agdtlie Mac. Although the Treasury has committgatahto Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, there candbassurance that
these actions will be adequate for their need$id$e actions are inadequate, Fannie Mae and Er&tit could continue to suffer losses and couldddnonor their guarantees
and other obligations. The future roles of FanneeMnd Freddie Mac could be significantly redugsditae nature of their guarantees could be corediffediminished. Any
changes to the nature of the guarantees providéabygie Mae and Freddie Mac could redefine whastitoiies Mortgage-Backed Securities and could tewad adverse
market implications.

Given the highly fluid and evolving nature of thesesnts, it is unclear how our business will beactpd. Based upon the further activity of the & ernment or
market response to developments at Fannie Maeegidir Mac, our business could be adversely impacted

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008E&SA, was enacted in October 2008. The EESAigesvthe U.S. Secretary of the Treasury with thtaity
to establish a Troubled Asset Relief Program, oRPAto purchase from financial institutions up @ billion of equity or preferred securities, desitial or commercial
mortgages and any securities, obligations, or atferuments that are based on or related to suwrtgages, that in each case was originated ordssner before March 14,
2008, as well as any other financial instrument tha U.S. Secretary of the Treasury, after coatiolh with the Chairman of the Board of Governdrthe Federal Reserve
System, determines the purchase of which is negessaromote financial market stability, upon tarittal of such determination, in writing, to thepaopriate committees of
the U.S. Congress. The EESA also provides foognam that would allow companies to insure theulded assets.
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The U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and othergamental and regulatory bodies have taken or amsidering taking other actions to address the firen
crisis. The Term Asset-Backed Securities Loanlfgcor TALF, was first announced by the TreasaryNovember 25, 2008, and has been expanded imsézecope since its
initial announcement. Under the TALF, the Fed&aserve Bank of New York, or the FRBNY, providesisiecourse loans to borrowers to fund their pusetaf eligible
assets, which currently includes certain ABS butRidBS or CMBS. On March 23, 2009, the U.S. Tregsannounced preliminary plans to expand the TALhttude non-
Agency RMBS and CMBS. On May 1, 2009, the FedeeddRve provided more of the details as to how TALI® be expanded to newly issued CMBS and expiihat
beginning in June 2009, up to $100 billion of TAldans will be available to finance purchases of CMiBeated on or after January 1, 2009. In additdhe ability of newly
issued CMBS to become collateral under the TALFMay 19, 2009, the Federal Reserve provided detailthe types of legacy CMBS that is eligible tadme collateral und
the TALF. To become eligible collateral under th&LF, the legacy CMBS must issued before JanuaB009 and must be senior in payment priority to#ier interests in the
underlying pool of commercial mortgages meet certdher criteria designed to protect the FederaeRes and the U.S. Treasury from credit risk. Begtvly issued CMBS and
legacy CMBS must have at least two triple-A ratifigen DBRS, Fitch Ratings, Moody's Investors SeeviRealpoint, or Standard Poor’s and must not lhaating below triple-
A from any of these rating agencies to becometdigiollateral under the TALF. To date, neither BRBNY nor the U.S. Treasury has announced how &ie will be
expanded to cover non-Agency RMBS.

In addition, on March 23, 2009, the U.S. Treasimgonjunction with the Federal Deposit Insuranogg@ration, or FDIC, and the Federal Reserve, anced the
establishment of the Public-Private Investment Raog or PPIP. The PPIP is designed to encourageahsfer of certain illiquid legacy real estatéated assets off of the
balance sheets of financial institutions, restartlre market for these assets and supporting ¢hedf credit and other capital into the broademexroy. The PPIP is expected to
be $500 billion to $1 trillion in size and has tyomary components: the Legacy Securities Prognaditiae Legacy Loan Program. Under the Legacy SeesifProgram, Legac
Securities Public-Private Investment Funds, or BPII be established to purchase from finanaiatitutions certain nodgency RMBS and CMBS that were originally rate
the highest rating category by one or more of #@nally recognized statistical rating organizaioUnder the Legacy Loan Program, Legacy Loan Rl be established to
purchase troubled loans (including residential emtimercial mortgage loans) from insured depositostitutions.

As these programs are still in early stages of ldgweent, it is not possible for us to predict hdwegse programs will impact our business. Althougsé aggressive
steps are intended to protect and support the WSihg and mortgage market, we continue to operaderwery difficult market conditions. As a restiftere can be no
assurance that the EESA, the TARP, the TALF, PPRI&tteer policy initiatives will have a beneficiahpact on the financial markets, including currextteame levels of
volatility. We cannot predict whether or when saciions may occur or what impact, if any, suchoastcould have on our business, results of operatand financial
condition.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tdteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will primgrdepend on,
among other things, the level of our net interesbine, the market value of our assets, and thdysoppnd demand for such assets. Our net intémestne, which reflects the
amortization of purchase premiums and accretiadiszfounts, varies primarily as a result of charigasterest rates, borrowing costs, and prepayrapeéds, which is a
measurement of how quickly borrowers pay down thgaid principal balance on their mortgage loans.

Prepayment Speeds. Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constgnayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdssrahe type of investment, conditions in
financial markets, competition and other factomenof which can be predicted with any certaiftygeneral, when interest rates rise, it is reldjivess attractive for borrowers
to refinance their mortgage loans, and as a rqa@payment speeds tend to decrease. When intatestfall, prepayment speeds tend to increaganbagage loan and RMBS
investments purchased at a premium, as prepayrpeatls increase, the amount of income we earn desrd®@cause the purchase premium we paid for tigskeonortizes
faster than expected. Conversely, decreases jrapnmgent speeds result in increased income andxtancethe period over which we amortize the puref@emium. For
mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchased igtauht, as prepayment speeds increase, the ambintome we earn increases because of the actieferd the accretio
of the discount into interest income. Converseggrdases in prepayment speeds result in decreasmde and can extend the period over which we tectine purchase discot
into interest income.
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Rising Interest Rate Environment. As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease, increasing ounteeést income. Rising interest
rates, however, increase our financing costs wiali result in a net negative impact on our ner@sieincome. In addition, if we acquire Agency aa-Agency RMBS
collateralized by monthly reset adjustable-ratetgages, or ARMs, and three- and five-year hybridMsRsuch interest rate increases could result énedeses in our net
investment income, as there could be a timing misimbetween the interest rate reset dates on olBRpbrtfolio and the financing costs of these itvests. Monthly reset
ARMs are ARMs on which coupon rates reset monthlgelol on indices such as the one-month London bot&rDffering Rate, or LIBOR. Hybrid ARMs are maagges that
have interest rates that are fixed for an initedigd (typically three, five, seven or ten yeansil #hereafter reset at regular intervals subjeaiterest rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investments, simtérest rate increases should result in incresesr net investment income because our floatatg assets are
greater in amount than the related floating rabilities. Similarly, such an increase in intenedes should generally result in an increase imetiinvestment income on fixed-
rate investments made by us because our fixedasstets would be greater in amount than our fixeslli@bilities. We expect, however, that our fixede assets would decline
in value in a rising interest rate environment #rat our net interest spreads on fixed rate assetisl decline in a rising interest rate environnterthe extent such assets are
financed with floating rate debt.

Falling Interest Rate Environment. As interest rates fall, prepayment speeds gendrallgase, decreasing our net interest incomeingahterest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-Agency RM&#ateralized by
monthly reset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMd,three- and five-year hybrid ARMs, such interas¢ decreases could result in increases in ounnestment income, as
there could be a timing mismatch between the istaee reset dates on our RMBS portfolio and ith@nicing costs of these investments. Monthly régdtls are ARMs on
which coupon rates reset monthly based on indieels as the one-month London Interbank Offering Rat¢IBOR. Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that haveerast rates that
are fixed for an initial period (typically threayé, seven or ten years) and thereafter resegataeintervals subject to interest rate caps.

With respect to our floating rate investments, simtbrest rate decreases may result in decreases imet investment income because our floating aasets may be
greater in amount than the related floating rathilities. Similarly, such a decrease in interasés should generally result in an increase imetiinvestment income on fixed-
rate investments made by us because our fixedasstets would be greater in amount than our fixeglti@bilities. We expect, however, that our fixede assets would increase
in value in a falling interest rate environment dinat our net interest spreads on fixed rate assetisl increase in a falling interest rate envirentrto the extent such assets are
financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshwilie believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy will generally keep our credgdes
and financing costs low. We retain the risk ofgmtial credit losses on all of the residential m@age loans we hold in our portfolio. Additionalggme of our investments in
RMBS may be qualifying interests for purposes ofntaaning our exemption from the 1940 Act becauseretain a 100% ownership interest in the undegly@ans. If we
purchase all classes of these securitizations,ave the credit exposure on the underlying loantor B the purchase of these securities, we conaulue diligence process that
allows us to remove loans that do not meet ouricstahdards based on loan-to-value ratios, bomrsvegedit scores, income and asset documentatidrother criteria that we
believe to be important indications of credit risk.

Sze of Investment Portfolio. The size of our investment portfolio, as measunethk aggregate unpaid principal balance of ourtgagre loans and aggregate
principal balance of our mortgage related securitied the other assets we own is also a key rewdnuer. Generally, as the size of our investnmtfolio grows, the amount
of interest income we receive increases. The tamyestment portfolio, however, drives increasgdenses as we incur additional interest expenfindace the purchase of our
assets.
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Since changes in interest rates may significarffscaour activities, our operating results depandarge part, upon our ability to effectively nzgye interest rate ris|
and prepayment risks while maintaining our statia &EIT.

Current Environment.  The current weakness in the broader mortgageetsadould adversely affect one or more of our pigelenders or any of our lenders and
could cause one or more of our potential lendeengrof our lenders to be unwilling or unable toypde us with financing or require us to post aiddial collateral. In general,
this could potentially increase our financing castsl reduce our liquidity or require us to sellesst an inopportune time. We expect to use eoeuiwf sources to finance our
investments, including repurchase agreements, wasghfacilities, securitizations, asset-backed ceroial paper and term CDOs. Current market camuthave affected the
cost and availability of financing from each of $besources and their individual providers to déférdegrees; some sources generally are unavaitabtee are available but at a
high cost, and some are largely unaffected. Famgte, in the repurchase agreement market, borsoiaere been affected differently depending onyhe bf security they are
financing. Non-Agency RMBS have been harder tarfte, depending on the type of assets collatergltie RMBS. The amount, term and margin requirgmassociated
with these types of financings have been negativepacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigrime residential mortgages are generally availtom major banks, but at significantly highestand have
greater margin requirements than previously offekéahy major banks that offer warehouse facilitiase also reduced the amount of capital availabfestv entrants and
consequently the size of those facilities offered/rare smaller than those previously availablee d&cided to terminate our two whole loan repurefageements in order to
avoid paying non-usage fees under those agreements.

Itis currently a challenging market to term finarwehole loans through securitization or bonds idduea CDO structure. The highly rated senior bandkese
securitizations and CDO structures currently hayadity, but at much wider spreads than issuesagrin recent history. The junior subordinate tre®cof these structures
currently have few buyers and current market cémbthave forced issuers to retain these lowedratends rather than sell them.

Certain issuers of ABCP have been unable to place(l) their securities, which has resulted, @me instances, in forced sales of MBS and otharrges which ha
further negatively impacted the market value obthassets. These market conditions are fluidikaly lto change over time. As a result, the exiecuof our investment
strategy may be dictated by the cost and avaitghafi financing from these different sources.

If one or more major market participants fails treywise experiences a major liquidity crisis, @swhe case for Bear Stearns & Co. in March 2008 L@hman
Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 2008, it couddatively impact the marketability of all fixeccwmme securities and this could negatively impaetvhlue of the securities \
acquire, thus reducing our net book value. Funioee, if many of our potential lenders or any of nders are unwilling or unable to provide ushWihancing, we could be
forced to sell our securities or residential mogggyéans at an inopportune time when prices aresdspd.

As described above, there has been significantrgavent action in the capital markets. Howevertdtean be no assurance that the governmeations with respe
to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae, the EESA, the TAR®TALF, the PPIP or other policy initiatives whlve a beneficial impact on the financial markietsiuding current
extreme levels of volatility. To the extent therket does not respond favorably to these action)ese actions do not function as intended, osirlass may not receive the
anticipated positive impact from them. In addititme U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and othergmental and regulatory bodies have taken ocemeidering taking
other actions to address the financial crisis. ot predict whether or when such actions mayracwhat impact, if any, such actions could hameoar business, results of
operations and financial condition.

In the current market, it may be difficult or impsdsle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition, validating thirdtparicing for our
investments may be more subjective as fewer ppatits may be willing to provide this service to Woreover, the current market is more illiquidrthia recent history for son
of the investments we purchase. llliquid investtagypically experience greater price volatilityaseady market does not exist.  As volatilitgremses or liquidity decreases
we may have greater difficulty financing our invaents which may negatively impact our earningsthedexecution of our investment strategy.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the United States of America, or GAARese
accounting principles may require us to make soomepiex and subjective decisions and assessmenism@st critical accounting policies will involveecisions and
assessments that could affect our reported asset&ilities, as well as our reported revenued expenses. We believe that all of the decisioasassessments upon which
consolidated financial statements are based witebgonable at the time made and based upon infiormevailable to us at that time. At each quaeted, we calculate
estimated fair value of the investment portfolicngsa pricing model. We validate our pricing mobglobtaining independent pricing on all of oureassand performing a
verification of those sources to our own interrgtireate of fair value. The following are our mostical accounting policies:

Mortgage Loan Sales and Securitizations

We periodically enter into transactions in which sed financial assets, such as RMBS, mortgageslaal other assets. We also securitize and reiseedinancial
assets. These transactions are recorded as &ithate” and the loans held for investment are neddrom the consolidated statements of finan@aldition or as a “financing
and are classified as “Securitized loans heldrfeestment” on our consolidated statements of firdrmondition, depending upon the structure ofgbeuritization
transaction. In these securitizations and re-$gzations we sometimes retain or acquire senicsutrordinated interests in the securitized or mexsééized assets. Gains and
losses on such securitizations or re-securitizatame recognized using a financial components agprthat focuses on control. Under this approafthr a transfer of financial
assets, an entity recognizes the financial and@egvassets it controls and the liabilities it asurred, derecognizes financial assets when abhérs been surrendered, and
derecognizes liabilities when extinguished.

We determine the gain or loss on sale of mortgaged by allocating the carrying value of the undeg mortgage between securities or loans soldta@dnterests
retained based on their fair values. The gaimss bn sale is the difference between the caslegdscdrom the sale and the amount allocated tseberities or loans sold.

Valuation of Investments

Fair value, establishes a framework for measuiirgvalue, and establishes a three-level valuatienarchy for disclosure of fair value measurensit enhances
disclosure requirements for fair value measuremente valuation hierarchy is based upon the traresgy of inputs to the valuation of an assetatility as of the
measurement date. The three levels are definfallaws:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgqd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabidlities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwguoted prices for similar assets and liabiliteactive markets, and inputs that are observiallthe asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for subetially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology anehservable and significant to overall fair value.

Non-Agency and Agency Mortgage-Backed Securitiesvatued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdelancorporates such factors as coupons, prepaymen
speeds, spread to the Treasury and swap curvesexibn duration, periodic and life caps, and ctesihancement. Management reviews the fair valeesrmined by the
pricing model and compares its results to dealetegireceived on each investment to validate theorableness of the valuations indicated by tretngrimodels. The dealer
quotes incorporate common market pricing methaududing a spread measurement to the Treasury auriveerest rate swap curve as well as underlghmyacteristics of the
particular security including coupon, periodic difiel caps, rate reset period, issuer, additionedlitrsupport and expected life of the security.

Although we utilize a pricing model to compute fa& value of the securities in our portfolio, walidate our fair values by seeking indicationsaif f/alue from
third-party dealers and/or pricing services. Thealility of fair value among dealers and pricirangces can be wide at this time as full liquidity the non-Agency market has
yet to return. In addition, there are fewer p@otats in the RMBS sector available to fair valmeeistments.  In the aggregate, our internalatadas of the securities on whi
we received dealer marks were 0.78% higher thaadlgeegated dealer marks.
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Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtblsy management to ensure the changes are aeogks markets and products develop and the gricin
certain products becomes more transparent, wereantd refine our valuation methodologies. The méshused by us may produce a fair value calculaiahmay not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflectivefofure fair values. Furthermore, while we beliewe valuation methods are appropriate and congistith other market
participants, the use of different methodologiesassumptions, to determine the fair value of tefiaancial instruments could result in a differ@stimate of fair value at the
reporting date. We use inputs that are curreof 8% measurement date, which may include perdasarket dislocation, during which price transpenemay be reduced. TI
condition could cause our financial instrumentbéareclassified from Level 2 to Level 3.

Other-than-Temporary Impairments

FASB issued new guidance to improve the presemtati disclosure of other-than-temporary impairméf®TTI”) on debt and equity securities. We azalyur
non-Agency RMBS portfolio as these investmentsdatler this new guidance. The security is analyaedredit loss (the difference between the presatue of cash flows
expected to be collected and the amortized coss)oa$ we do not intend to sell nor are requitecsell the debt security prior to its anticipatedovery, the credit loss, if any, is
recognized in the statement of earnings, whilebéilance of impairment related to other factorgtognized in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCIf)we intend to sell the
debt security, or will be required to sell the s@gbefore its anticipated recovery, the full OTi§Irecognized in the statement of earnings. Giem-temporary impairment has
occurred if there has been an adverse changeurefastimated cash flow and its impact reflectecliment earnings. The determination cannot beaovee by management
judgment of the probability of collecting all cafitws previously projectec

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

Our securitized residential mortgage loans are cmap of fixed-rate and variable-rate loans. Wechase pools of residential mortgage loans thraugélect group
of originators. Mortgage loans are designatededd for investment, recorded on trade date, anadaméed at their principal balance outstandingspny premiums or discounts
which are amortized or accreted over the estimidedf the loan, less allowances for loan losses.

Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-BackedeSurities

We invest in RMBS representing interests in oblia backed by pools of mortgage loans and caoyelsecurities at fair value estimated using angic
model. Management reviews the fair values genéfayehe model to determine whether prices arecéfle of the current market. Management perfaanaalidation of the fai
value calculated by the pricing model by compaitagesults to independent prices provided by deatethe securities and/or third party pricingviees. If dealers or
independent pricing services are unable to progigece for an asset, or if the price providedhmn is deemed unreliable by FIDAC, then the as#ebe/valued at its fair
value as determined in good faith by FIDAC. In thverent market, it may be difficult or impossilteobtain third party pricing on certain of our @stments. In addition,
validating third party pricing for our investmemtgy be more subjective as fewer participants mayibieg to provide this service to us. Moreov#re current market is more
illiquid than in recent history for some of the @stments we own. llliquid investments typicallypexence greater price volatility as a ready madaets not exist. As volatility
increases or liquidity decreases, we may have greificulty financing its investments which maggatively impact its earnings and the executioitsohvestment strategy.

Our investment securities are classified as eitlagling investments, available-for-sale investmentseld-to-maturity investments. We intend to hold RMBS as
available-for-sale and as such may sell any ofRIMBS as part of our overall management of our pticf All assets classified as available-&ate are reported at estimated
value, with unrealized gains and losses includeathier comprehensive income.

When the fair value of an available-for-sale segus less than its amortized cost for an exterksibd or there is a significant decline in valwe, consider whether
there is other-than-temporary impairment in thaigadf the security. If, based on our analysigedlit portion of other-than-temporary impairmeniséx the cost basis of the
security is written down to the then-current faatue, and the unrealized loss is transferred frooumulated other comprehensive loss as an immeidtection of current
earnings (as if the loss had been realized in ¢éniog of other-than-temporary impairment). Theedetination of other-than-temporary impairment suajective process, and
different judgments and assumptions could affeetitining of loss realization.
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We consider the following factors when determinatiger-than-temporary impairment for a security:
. the length of time and the extent to which the maxalue has been less than the amortized cost;
. and the financial condition and near-term prospettke issuer;
. the credit quality and cash flow performance ofgheurity; and
. whether we will be more likely than not requiredstll the investment before the expected recovery.

The determination of other-than-temporary impairtiemade at least quarterly. If we determinerapdirment to be other than temporary we will reabzloss
which will negatively impact current income.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade dRéalized gains and losses from sales of RMBS asrrdined based on the specific identification mdthod
recorded as a gain (loss) on sale of investmertseiistatement of operations. Accretion of dis¢ewn amortization of premiums on available-foressgcurities and mortgage
loans is computed using the effective interestdyiekthod and is included as a component of intémestne in the statement of operations.

Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investnerecognized over the life of the investmenhgghe effective interest method. Income recagnits
suspended for loans when, in the opinion of managena full recovery of income and principal becerdeubtful. Income recognition is resumed wherlda@ becomes
contractually current and performance is demorestréd be resumed.

Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments andHedging Activities

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative taats, including interest rate swaps and intenast caps, as a means of mitigating our interéstrisk. We intend to
use interest rate derivative instruments to midgaterest rate risk rather than to enhance retlfrmse hedge using interest rate swaps we accdourthese instruments as free-
standing derivatives. Accordingly, they are catr fair value with realized and unrealized gaind losses recognized in earnings.

We recognize all derivatives as either assetsabiliiies in the statement of financial conditiamdameasure those instruments at fair value. Addttiy, the fair value
adjustments will affect either other comprehengino®me in stockholders’ equity until the hedgeahitis recognized in earnings or net income dependinghether the
derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for aotiog purposes and, if so, the nature of the heglgctivity.

The FASB issued additional guidance that attengpisiprove the transparency of financial reportiygoboviding additional information about how detiive and
hedging activities affect an entity’s financial g, financial performance and cash flows. Tdusdance requires the disclosure requirementsdawative instruments and
hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclogreut (1) how and why an entity uses derivatigriments, (2) how derivative instruments and eeldtedged items, and (3)
how derivative instruments and related hedged iteffext the entity’s financial position, financigrformance, and cash flows.

In the normal course of business, we may useiatyasf derivative financial instruments to econoailly manage, or hedge, interest rate risk. Theseative
financial instruments must be effective in reduacing interest rate risk exposure in order to qudbtf hedge accounting. When the terms of an ugthgyltransaction are
modified, or when the underlying hedged item cessexist, all changes in the fair value of therasient are included in net income for each peuniil the derivative
instrument matures or is settled. Any derivativ@rinment used for risk management that does not thededging criteria is carried at fair valuetwtite changes in value
included in net income.
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Derivatives will be used for economic hedging pwsgmrather than speculation. We will rely on quotest from third parties to determine fair valuésour hedging
activities do not achieve our desired results,reported earnings may be adversely affected.

Allowance for Probable Credit Losses

We have established an allowance for loan lossadeatel that management believes is adequate lmasad evaluation of known and inherent probaldsds related
to our loan portfolio. The estimate is based ety of factors including current economic cdiatis, industry loss experience, the loan origiriatlmss experience, credit
quality trends, loan portfolio composition, delirpey trends, national and local economic trendsomal unemployment data, changes in housing a&jtien or depreciation
and whether specific geographic areas where we s$ignéicant loan concentrations are experiencithigease economic conditions and events such asataisasters that may
affect the local economy or property values. Uparchase of the pools of loans, we obtained writegresentations and warranties from the selletsitbacould be reimbursed
for the value of the loan if the loan fails to méwet agreed upon origination standards. While aweeHittle history of its own to establish loanrtds, delinquency trends of the
originators and the current market conditions midetermining the allowance for loan losses. Vée gkerformed due diligence procedures on a sanfipd@os that met its
criteria during the purchase process. We haveeadem unallocated provision for probable loandsssstimated as a percentage of the remainingipainan the
loans. Management’s estimate is based on histaxgeerience of similarly underwritten pools.

When we determine it is probable that specific rottially due amounts are uncollectible, the am@iobnsidered impaired. Where impairment is iatéd, a
valuation write-off is measured based upon the €xoé the recorded investment over the net faevalf the collateral, reduced by selling costsy Aaficiency between the
carrying amount of an asset and the net sales pfiEpossessed collateral is charged to the allow/éor loan losses.

Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxeed REIT. Therefore we will generally not be sebje corporate federal or state income tax toetktent that we
make qualifying distributions to our stockholdeasd provided we satisfy on a continuing basis,ufhoactual investment and operating results, thd R&quirements including
certain asset, income, distribution and stock osimertests.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualffyr certain statutory relief provisions, we wik Isubject to federal, state and local income taxelsmay be preclude
from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent faxable years following the year in which we lost REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failure wualify as a REIT could
have a material adverse impact on our results efaijpns and amounts available for distributionto stockholders.

The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usingtaxable income as opposed to net income reportehe
consolidated financial statements. Taxable incayeaerally, will differ from net income reported tire consolidated financial statements becausddteemination of taxable
income is based on tax provisions and not finaradabunting principles.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen
General Principles

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 105)

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Stadel&oard (FASB) updatethe Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (Codification) which revises the framework for selecting the acatimg principles to be used in the preparationimdricial statements that are presented in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Piiples (GAAP). The objective of the standard igstablish the FASB Accounting Standards Codifica(i®SC) as the
source of authoritative accounting principles ragpgd by the FASB. Codification is effective ftnetCompany for this September 30, 2009 Form 10sCadopting the
Codification, all non-grandfathered, non-SEC actimgnliterature not included in the Codificationssperseded and deemed non-authoritative. Cotidficeequires any
references within the Company’s consolidated fingratatements be modified from FASB issues to A&owever, in accordance with the FASB Accountingn8ards
Codification Notice to Constituents (v 2.0), thengmany will not reference specific sections of teG\but will use broad topic references.
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The Company’s recent accounting pronouncementgosdtas been reformatted to reflect the same orgéinhal structure as the ASC. Broad topic refeesrwill be
updated with pending content as it is released.

Assets

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC 320)

New guidance was provided to make impairment guidanore operational and to improve the presentatehdisclosure of other-than-temporary impairments
(“OTTI") on debt and equity securities, as wellkeneficial interests in securitized financial asset financial statements. This was as a resuie@SEC mark-to-market study
mandated under the EESA. The SEC’s recommenda@srto “evaluate the need for modifications (oréhimination) of current OTTI guidance to provide &t more uniform
system of impairment testing standards for findriogtruments.” The new guidance revises the O8vidluation methodology. Previously the analytfoals was on whether
the entity had the “intent and ability to retais ilhvestment in the debt security for a periodmktsufficient to allow for any anticipated recoyén fair value.” Now the focus i
on whether the entity has the “intent to sell tebtdsecurity or, more likely than not, will be réeual to sell the debt security before recoveryt®fimortized cost basis.” Further,
the security is analyzed for credit loss (the défee between the present value of cash flows ¢xgpéc be collected and the amortized cost basishe company does not
intend to sell the debt security, nor will be reqdito sell the debt security prior to recoveryt®famortized cost basis, the credit loss, if amill,be recognized in the statemen
earnings, while the balance of impairment relatedther factors will be recognized in Other Compredive Income (“OCI”). If the company intends &l she security, or will
be required to sell the security before its antitépl recovery, the full OTTI will be recognizedtive statement of earnings. This guidance becafaetiee for the Company on
June 30, 2009. The adoption of this standard didesult in a cumulative effect adjustment toirete earnings in the period of adoption but charthednanner that the
Company evaluates investment securities for otha@n-temporary impairments.

Other-than-temporary impairment has occurred ifelfeas been an adverse change in future estimasédflows and its impact reflected in current eagai The
determination cannot be overcome by managementrjedgof the probability of collecting all cash fleypreviously projected. The objective of otheartiemporary
impairment analysis is to determine whether itrizbable that the holder will realize some portidithe unrealized loss on an impaired security. tétado consider when maki
other-than-temporary impairment decision includerimation about past events, current conditionsseaable and supportable forecasts, remaining patyterens, financial
condition of the issuer, expected defaults, valuenderlying collateral, industry analysis, seatoedit rating, credit enhancement, and financialditoon of guarantor. The
Company’s non-Agency RMBS investments fall undés guidance and as such, the Company assessesezarhy for other-than-temporary impairments base@stimated
future cash flows. This guidance became effedtivéghe Company on December 31, 2008.

Broad Transactions

Consolidation (ASC 810)

On January 1, 2009, FASB amended the guidance nangenon-controlling interests in consolidatemdficial statements, which requires the Companyakem
certain changes to the presentation of its conat@difinancial statements. This guidance requiresQompany to classify non-controlling interestegously referred to as
“minority interest”) as part of consolidated net@me and to include the accumulated amount of motralling interests as part of stockholders’ eguBimilarly, in its
presentation of stockholders’ equity, the Compaistirtguishes between equity amounts attributabkotdrolling interest and amounts attributableht® mon-controlling
interests — previously classified as minority ietroutside of stockholders’ equity. For the quaeteled September 30, 2009, the Company does wetdmy consolidated non-
controlling interests. In addition to these finaleeporting changes, this guidance provides fgmificant changes in accounting related to non+dlitig interests; specifically,
increases and decreases in its controlling fin&mtierests in consolidated subsidiaries will bparted in equity similar to treasury stock trangaxs. If a change in ownership of
a consolidated subsidiary results in loss of cdrtnal deconsolidation, any retained ownership @stsrare re-measured with the gain or loss reparteet earnings.
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FASB amended the consolidation standards in JW@9 By issuing FAS 167Amendment to FASB Interpretation No 46(R) . This standard had an effective dat
January 1, 2010. It has not, as yet been incorpdrato the ASC. While this remains nauthoritative until incorporated in the ASC, reme\the Qualified Special Purpc
Entity (QSPE) exemption from the Variable Inter&sttity (VIE) consolidation guidance and therefordl Wwave a material effect on the consolidationtbé Companys
securitized assets.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

Effective January 1, 2009 and adopted by the Compasspectively, the FASB issued additional guidaattempting to improve the transparency of fimanc
reporting by mandating the provision of additioimibrmation about how derivative and hedging atits affect an entity’s financial position, finaatperformance and cash
flows. This guidance changed the disclosure reguénts for derivative instruments and hedging digts/by requiring enhanced disclosure about (1 had why an entity uses
derivative instruments, (2) how derivative instrurtgeand related hedged items are accounted for3ritbw derivative instruments and related hedgeds affect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and clstvs. To adhere to this guidance, qualitativectisures about objectives and strategies for ulenigatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts, gains argksn derivative instruments, and disclosurestatyedit-risk-related contingent features in detii@agreements must be
made. This disclosure framework is intended toebeinvey the purpose of derivative use in terfrth@risks that an entity is intending to manayé¢hile the Company
discontinued hedge accounting the adoption ofghidance increases footnote disclosure if the Compagages in hedging activities

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In response to the deterioration of the credit ratrkFASB issued guidance clarifying how Fair Valleasurements should be applied when valuing désim
markets that are not active. The guidance prowvaaeiustrative example, utilizing management’simnial cash flow and discount rate assumptions wilewant observable data
do not exist. It further clarifies how observabiarket information and market quotes should beidensd when measuring fair value in an inactivekegr It reaffirms the
notion of fair value as an exit price as of the suament date and that fair value analysis isres@retional process and should not be broadly apfiie@ group of assets. The
guidance was effective upon issuance includingrgrésiods for which financial statements had n@rbissued. The implementation this guidance dichave a material effect
on the fair value of the Comparyassets as the Company continued the methodolaggekin previous quarters to value assets asedetinder the original Fair Value standal

In October 2008 the Emergency Economic Stabilize#iot of 2008 (the “EESA”) was signed into law. cBen 133 of the EESA mandated that the SEC conaluct
study on mark-to-market accounting standards. SIB€ provided its study to the U.S. Congress on bee 30, 2008. Part of the recommendations withénstudy indicated
that “fair value requirements should be improvewtigh development of application and best practigedance for determining fair value in illiquid mractive markets”. As a
result of this study and the recommendations theoa April 9, 2009, the FASB issued additionaldguice for determining fair value when the volume kavel of activity for
the asset or liability have significantly decreasden compared with normal market activity for #sset or liability (or similar assets or liabilg)e The guidance gives specific
factors to evaluate if there has been a decreaserinal market activity and if so, provides a melkhlogy to analyze transactions or quoted pricesraakie necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is tcedmine the point within a range of fair value estigs that is most representative of fair value underent market
conditions. This guidance became effective forGaenpany on June 30, 2009 and had no material inguethe fair valuation of the investment secusitisvned by the
Company.

In August 2009, FASB provided further guidance Ageting Standards Update (ASU) 2009-05, “Measurirabilities at Fair Value” regarding the fair value
measurement of liabilities. The guidance statasatguoted price for the identical liability whgaded as an asset in an active market is a Lefaét Yalue measurement. If the
value must be adjusted for factors specific toligaility, then the adjustment to the quoted pra¢e¢he asset shall render the fair value measureofehe liability a lower level
measurement. This guidance is effective for them@any on October 1, 2009 and has no material effethe fair valuation of the Company’s liabilities
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Financial Instruments (ASC 825)

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whidjurees disclosures about fair value of financiatinments for interim reporting periods as wellraannual
financial statements. The effective date of thiglgnce is for interim reporting periods endingaftune 15, 2009 with early adoption permittedpeniods ending after March
15, 2009. The adoption did not have any impadirancial reporting as all financial instruments aurrently reported at fair value in both intedmd annual periods.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)

In May 2009, the FASB established general standgosierning accounting for and disclosure of evéimas occur after the balance sheet date but béferénancial
statements are issued or are available to be issi8@ 855 also provides guidance on the pericet difie balance sheet date during which managenfi@nteporting entity
should evaluate events or transactions that mayrdoc potential recognition or disclosure in theeaicial statements, the circumstances under wdmobntity should recognize
events or transactions occurring after the balaheet date in its financial statements and thdadisces that an entity should make about eventisansactions occurring after 1
balance sheet date. The Company adopted effectiee 30, 2009, and adoption had no impact on thepaasis consolidated financial statements. The Compaaluated
subsequent events through November 6, 2009.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In February 2008 FASB issued guidance addressirggheh transactions where assets purchased fromtieytar counterparty and financed through a repase
agreement with the same counterparty can be caesidend accounted for as separate transactioase sequired to be considered “linked” transactiamd may be considered
derivatives. This guidance requires purchasessahdequent financing through repurchase agreerbertsnsidered linked transactions unless all ofdliewing conditions
apply: (1) the initial purchase and the use ofirepase agreements to finance the purchase aoenivactually contingent upon each other; (2) #urchase financing entered
into between the parties provides full recoursthéotransferee and the repurchase price is fi@dhe financial assets are readily obtainablinéhnmarket; and (4) the financial
instrument and the repurchase agreement are rertiobus. This guidance was effective for the Canypon January 1, 2009 and the implementation dichave a material
effect on the consolidated financial statementhefCompany.

The accounting standards governing the transfesandcing of financial assets were amended in 2089, to be effective beginning January 1, 20ILKis
amendment will update the existing standard andiedite the concept of a Qualified Special Purpas#yE(“QSPE”"); clarify the surrendering of contra effect sale treatment;
and modify the financial components approach -tiigithe circumstances in which a financial assegtastion thereof should be derecognized whenrduesteror maintains
continuing involvement. It defines the term “Peigiating Interest”.Under this standard update, the transferor musigrdze and initially measure at fair value all assbtaine
and liabilities incurred as a result of a transfiecjuding any retained beneficial interest. Asttime, the Company continues to evaluate thecetiethis update on future
financial reporting.

Financial Condition
At September 30, 2009, our portfolio consisted 20%billion of non-Agency RMBS, $1.8 billion of Agey RMBS and $498.9 million of securitized mortgdagns.

The following table summarizes certain charactesstf our portfolio at the quarters ended Septar86e2009 and 2008 and quarter ended June 30, 2009
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For the Quarters Ende

September 30, 20( September 30, 20( June 30, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Interest earning assets at pe-end $ 4,318,68. % 1,357,39: $ 4,166,73!
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 2,011,651 $ 1,120,34! $ 1,943,41.
Leverage at peric-end 0.9:1 4.6:1 1.0:1
Portfolio Composition:
Non-Agency MBS 63.(% 60.4% 55.5%
Agency MBS 28.8% - 34.5%
Loans collateralizing secured d¢ 8.2% 39.6% 10.(%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 59.(% 18.5% 59.7%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 41.(% 81.6% 40.2%
Annualized yield on average earning as
during the perio 7.71% 5.35% 6.82%
Annualized cost of funds on average borroy
funds during the peric 1.67% 4.64% 2.4%

The following tables summarize certain charactesstf each asset class in our portfolio at Seper8b, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

September 30, 20( Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS

Secured Loan

Weighted average cost ba $54.38 $103.51 $101.01
Weighted average fair value ( $52.41 $104.76 $101.01
Weighted average coup 5.39% 5.51% 6.11%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 26.67% 28.78% 3.50%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 35.48% 0.00% 4.70%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 17.34% 15.27% 20.98%

December 31, 200 Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS

Secured Loan

Weighted average cost ba $98.01 $102.71 $101.03
Weighted average fair value ( $68.16 $103.58 $101.03
Weighted average coupt 5.97% 6.69% 5.95%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 1.30% 13.70% 15.00%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 51.20% 0.00% 18.80%
Weighted average 3 month CPR at pe-end (2) 12.50% 14.50% 7.80%

(1) Secured loans are carried at amortized |
(2) Represents the estimated percentage of printtipawill be prepaid over the next three monthséa on historical principal paydow:

The table below summarizes our RMBS investmen8eatember 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

September 30, 20C
Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS Non-Agency RMBS

December 31, 20C
Agency RMBS

(dollars in thousand:

Principal value $ 3,809,661 $ 1,740,400 $ 899,45¢ $ 233,97t
Unamortized premiur 2,671 61,104 2,10¢ 6,35(
Unamortized discour (1,740,73) (29) (29,759 -
Gross unrealized ga 130,63: 23,31¢ 5,66t 2,03¢
Gross unrealized los (205,78)) (1,492) (274,369 -
Fair value $ 1,996,46! $ 1,823,300 $ 613,10 $ 242,36.

As of September 30, 2009, the RMBS in our portfalere purchased at a net discount to their parvadur RMBS had a weighted average amortizedafd®®.8%

and 99.0% at September 30, 2009 and December 88, Bspectively.
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Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortertiséated contractual maturities, as they are afteby the contractual lives of the underlying magss, periodic
payments of principal, and prepayments of principak remaining stated contractual final maturityh@ mortgage loans underlying our portfolio of RBIranges up to 37
years, but the expected maturity is subject to ghdrased on the prepayments of the underlying lgssmef September 30, 2009, the average final estual maturity of th
RMBS portfolio is 29 years, and as of December2R08, it was 30 years. The estimated weightedaggemonths to maturity of the RMBS in the tablelty are based upon
our prepayment expectations, which are based dngroprietary and subscription-based financial niexdeOur prepayment projections consider current@xpected trends in
interest rates, interest rate volatility, steeprafgbe yield curve, the mortgage rate of the @utding loan, time to reset and the spread margiheofeset.

The constant prepayment rate, or CPR, attempteettigt the percentage of principal that will begaie over a period of time. We calculate averaBR©n a
quarterly basis based on historical principal payaa As interest rates rise, the rate of re-finagsitypically declines, which we expect may reBulower rates of prepayment
and, as a result, a lower portfolio CPR. Conversadyinterest rates fall, the rate offieancings typically increases, which we expect mesult in higher rates of prepayment ¢
as a result, a higher portfolio CPR.

After the reset date, interest rates on our hyadidistable rate RMBS securities adjust annuallgbam spreads over various LIBOR and Treasury @sdi€hese
interest rates are subject to caps that limit theunt the applicable interest rate can increasegany year, known as periodic cap, and throughthturity of the applicable
security, known as a lifetime cap. The weighted-age periodic cap for the portfolio is an increa8.7% and the weighted average maximum lifetimeéases and decreases
for the portfolio are 7.7%.

The following tables summarize our RMBS accordinghieir estimated weighted average life classifices at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008:

September 30, 20(
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos
Less than one ye: $ 443310 $ 411,65¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,47
Greater than one year and less than five y 1,283,23 1,354,24: 598,16: 584,94!
Greater than five yea 269,91( 305,71( 1,222,61! 1,214,06!
Total $ 1,096,460  $ 2,071,600 $ 1,823,300 $ 1,801,48:

December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS Agency RMBS
Weighted Average Lifi Fair Value Amortized Cos Fair Value Amortized Cos
Less than one ye: $ - % - $ - $ -
Greater than one year and less than five y 525,80: 735,50¢ 242,36: 240,32¢
Greater than five yea 87,304 146,30( - -
Total $ 613,10! $ 881,80¢ $ 242,36:  $ 240,32¢

On July 30, 2009, we transferred $1.5 billion impipal value of its RMBS to the JPMRT 2009-7 Trims re-securitization transaction. In this trct®n, we sold
$166.3 million of AAA-rated fixed and floating rab®nds to third party investors and realized a gaitthe sale of approximately $7.3 million. Weaised $690.6 million of
AAA-rated bonds, $665.5 million in subordinated Herand the owner trust certificate. The suboréitidtonds and the owner trust certificate provi@elicisupport to the AAA-
rated bonds. The bonds issued by the trust aletexdlized by RMBS that have been transferreth¢aJdPMRT 2009-7 Trust. Subsequent to the closatg df this re-
securitization and prior to September 30, 2009suld an additional $589.7 million of the AAA-ratbdnds and realized a gain on the sale of approeim&69.4 million.

On September 30, 2009, we transferred $1.7 billigorincipal value of its RMBS to the CMSC 2009-1ZRust in a re-securitization transaction. In thansaction,
we sold $260.6 million of AAA-rated fixed and fldag rate bonds to third party investors and redliagyain on sale of approximately $5.2 million. Y&&ained $655.0 million
of AAA-rated bonds, $815.1 million in subordinatednds and the owner trust certificate. The sulbatéid bonds and the owner trust certificate proeréelit support to the
AAA-rated bonds. The bonds issued by the trustabateralized by RMBS that have been transfetoettie CSMC 2009-12R Trust.
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Results of Operations for the Quarters and Nine Moths Ended September 30, 2009 and 2008.
Net Income/Loss Summary

Our net income for the quarter ended Septembe2@I9 was $158.0 million, or $0.24 per share. Otim@®me was generated primarily by interest incameur
portfolio and realized gains on sales of investme@ur net loss for the quarter ended Septemhe2(®IB was $107.6 million, or $2.76 per share. affieébute the increase in ¢
net income per share for the quarter ended SepteB®h@009 as compared to September 30, 2008 tetieed gain on sales of investments and anaseré interest
income. Our loss for the third quarter 2008 caesiprimarily of realized losses on sales of assets

Our net income for the nine months ended SepteB®e2009 was $228.5 million, or $0.51 per sharer @t income was generated primarily by intenespine on

our portfolio and realized gains on sales of inwesits. Our net loss for the nine months endedeB@mr 30, 2008 was $128.6 million or $3.30 peresha¥e attribute the net
loss for the nine months ended September 30, 206taply to realized losses on sales of investments
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The table below presents the net income/loss supnfoathe quarters and nine months ended SepteBh&x009 and 2008:

Net Income/Loss Summary
(dollars in thousands, except for share and peedtata)

(Unaudited)
For the Quarter Ended September 30 For the Nine Months Ended September 3(
2009 2008 2009 2008
Net Interest Income:
Interest incomt $ 104,69 $ 23,45¢ % 197,77 $ 81,60
Interest expens 9,197 15,541 26,552 49,59(
Net interest incom 95,49! 7,91¢ 171,22: 32,01:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (6,209 - (14,789 -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compretinee income 4,024 - 6,104 -
Net othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (2,18%) - (8,680 -
Other gains (losses):
Unrealized gains on interest rate sw - 10,06t - 4,15¢
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 74,50¢ (113,130) 87,45¢ (144,309
Realized losses on principal w-downs (61) - (61) -
Realized losses on terminations of interest ragps - (10,460 - (10,337
Total other gains (losse 74,44 (113,52 87,39¢ (150,489
Net investment income (expense) 167,75! (105,610 249,93° (118,477
Other expenses:
Management fe 8,64¢ 1,681 17,18¢ 6,13¢
Provision for loan losse 47 (5693) 1,41C 60C
General and administrative expen 1,057 81€ 2,828 3,372
Total other expense 9,75 1,93¢ 21,42 10,10¢
Income (loss) before income taxe 158,00: (107,549 228,51¢ (128,58()
Income taxe: - 12 1 15
Net income (loss $ 158,00 $ (107,550 $ 228,51 $ (128,599
Net income (loss) per shi-basic and dilute $ 024 $ (2.76) % 051 $ (3.30
Weighted average number of shares outstar-basic and dilute: 670,324,86 38,992,89 452,016,98 38,994,35
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 158,00: $ (107,550 $ 228,51 $ (128,599
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gain (loss) on availa-for-sale securitie 238,96¢ (146,45¢) 292,06: (282,61)
Reclassification adjustment for net losses included
in net income for oth-thar-temporary impairment 2,18t - 8,68( -
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gains)
losses included in net incor (74,447 113,13( (87,395 144,30«
Other comprehensive income (los 166,70° (33,326) 213,34¢ (138,307
Comprehensive income (los $ 324,70¢ $ (140,88) $ 441,86. $ (266,909

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $5.4 billion 48l lillion for the quarters ended September 30926nhd 2008, and $3.7 billion and $1.7 billion floe nine month
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectivaly.inferest income was $104.7 million and $23.9iarilfor the quarters ended September 30, 2002808 and $197.8
million and $81.6 million for the nine months end&elptember 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Qerdst income increase resulted from the increaseii interest earning
assets which followed our 2009 secondary offerinfise annualized yield on our portfolio was 7.718d &.35% for the quarters ended September 30, 2062008 and 7.20%
and 6.03% for the nine months ended September(®® and 2008, respectively. The increase in timeialized yield is attributed to the purchase ohkigyielding assets with
the proceeds from our 2009 secondary offerings.
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Interest Expense and the Cost of Fun

We had average borrowed funds of $2.2 billion ah@ $illion and total interest expense of $9.2 imilland $15.5 million for the quarters ended Sep&n30, 2009
and 2008, respectively. We had average borrowedsfof $1.5 billion and $1.4 billion and total irgst expense of $26.6 million and $49.6 million thee nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Ouwiaized cost of funds was 1.67% and 4.64% for theartgrs ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, anth228 4.82% for
the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and B&§&:ctively. The decline in interest expenselsted to a decrease in the borrowing rates fogtiaeter ended September
30, 2009 as compared to the quarter ended Septe30p2008, the decrease in borrowed funds, antethgination of interest rate swaps.

The table below shows our average borrowed fumdstést expense, average cost of funds, averagmonth LIBOR, average six-month LIBOR, average amath
LIBOR relative to average six-month LIBOR, and ag® cost of funds relative to average one- andnsoiith LIBOR for the quarters ended September 8092June 30, 2009,
and March 31, 2009, year ended December 31, 2b8&juarters ended December 31, 2008, and Sept&Dp2008.

Average Cost of Func
Average  Average  Average
One- Cost Cost
Month of of
LIBOR Funds Funds
Relative Relative Relative

to to to
Average  Average  Average Average  Average
Average Average¢ One- Six- Six- One- Six-

Borrowec Interest  Cost of Month Month Month Month Month
Funds Expens  Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ende

September 30, 20C $2,207,44. $ 9,197 1.67% 0.27% 0.84% -0.57% 1.4(% 0.8%%
For the quarter ende

June 30, 200 $1,386,53' $ 8,31: 2.4(% 0.37% 1.3% -1.02% 2.02% 1.01%
For the quarter ende

March 31, 200¢ $1,038,46! $ 9,047 3.48% 0.4€% 1.74% -1.28% 3.02% 1.7
For the year ende

December 31, 200 $1,304,87. $ 60,54« 4.6% 2.68% 3.06% -0.3t% 1.9€% 1.58%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 200 $1,105,23! $ 10,95¢ 3.9¢% 2.2:% 2.94% -0.71% 1.72% 1.02%
For the quarter ende

September 30, 20( $1,339,53. $ 15,54: 4.6% 2.62% 3.1% -0.57% 2.02% 1.45%

Net Interest Income

Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $95.5 million&h8é million for the quarters ended Septembe2809 and 2008,
and $171.2 million and $32.0 million for the ninemths ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respgctiuar net interest spread, which equals the yogidur average assets
for the period less the average cost of fundsHerteriod, was 6.04% and 0.71% for the quartersa&eptember 30, 2009 and 2008 and 4.91% and ¥&@li#te nine months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively attibute the increase in net interest incomeraatdnterest spread to the decline in the intess at which we borrow
funds and the purchase of higher yielding asséitafimg our 2009 secondary offerings.

The table below shows our average assets heldljritgeest earned on assets, yield on averageesitearning assets, average balance of repurchesenzents,
interest expense, average cost of funds, net Bitereome, and net interest rate spread for thetguended September 30, 2009, June 30, 2009, anch\81, 2009, the year
ended December 31, 2008, the quarters ended Dec&hb2008, and September 31, 2008.
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Net Interest Incom

Yield
on
Average Interest  Average Average¢ Net
Earning Earnec Interest Average Cost Net Interes
Assets on Earninc Debt Interest of Interes Rate
Held Assets Assets Balance  Expens Funds Income  Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ende

September 30, 20C $5,433,32:  $104,69( 7.71% $2,207,44. $ 9,197 1.67% $ 95,49: 6.04%
For the quarter ende

June 30, 200 $3,812,89° $ 65,071 6.8%% $1,386,53! $ 8,31: 2.4(% $56,76¢ 4.4%%
For the quarter ende

March 31, 200¢ $1,739,76°  $ 28,001 6.44% $1,038,46! $ 9,047 3.48% $18,96¢ 2.96%
For the year ende

December 31, 200 $1,711,70' $105,25¢ 5.9¢% $1,304,87. $ 60,54« 4.6% $44,71¢ 1.32%
For the quarter ende

December 31, 200 $1,621,20' $ 23,65¢ 5.74% $1,105,23' $ 10,95« 3.96% $12,70: 1.78%
For the quarter ende

September 30, 20C $1,751,741 $ 23,45¢ 5.35% $1,339,53. $ 15,54: 4.6 $ 7,91F 0.71%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, wkassets with a carrying value of $924.5 millionahiresulted in a net gain of approximately $74ibiom. For
the quarter ended September 30, 2008, we soldsasghta carrying value of $432.6 million and tenatied $983.4 million in interest rate swaps, whieulted in net realized
losses of approximately $113.1 million and $10.8iam, respectively.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $8.7 million &&d7 million for the quarters ended September 8092and 2008, and $17.2 million and $6.1 milliontfoe
nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 200&atdsgly. The management fee is based on stockhieldquity and the increase in the management feadéoguarter ende
September 30, 2009 resulted from a full quarténofeased equity due to the completion of two sdeonofferings of common stock during the last ¢erar

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses, iditlg the provision for loan losses, were $1.1 willand $253 thousand for the quarters ended Septe3b 200!
and 2008 and $4.2 million and $4.0 million for tiiee months ended September 30, 2009 and 200&atdsgly. G&A expenses increased during the pkdoe primarily to an
increase in the investment management fees.

Total expenses as a percentage of average totabassre 0.91% and 0.46% for the quarters endet®éer 30, 2009 and 2008 and 0.97% and 0.75% éonitie
months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, resglgctiVhe increase in total expenses as a peroentaaverage total assets is the result of an aserén investment
management fees at September 30, 2009.

Currently, FIDAC has waived its right to requiretaay our pro rata portion of rent, telephonéitiess, office furniture, equipment, machinery aoither office,
internal and overhead expenses of FIDAC and iizaéfs required for our operations.

The table below shows our total management feeG#l expenses as compared to average total assgé@vanage equity for the quarters ended Septenthex0®9,
June 30, 2009, March 31, 2009, for the year endszkBber 31, 2008, the quarters ended Decembe0B&, 3eptember 30, 2008.
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Management Fees and G&A Expenses and OperatinghEgfeatios

Total Management Fee Management Fee
Management Fee and G&A and G&A
and G&A Expenses/Total Expenses/Average
Expense: Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended September 30, Z $ 9,758 0.91% 1.8%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 7,94¢ 1.0&% 2.67%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 3,72 0.94% 3.51%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 14,027 0.85% 3.5(%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 3,91¢ 1.1(% 4.7%
For the quarter ended September 30, Z $ 1,93¢ 0.4€% 2.4€%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $158.0 million and $228.5 milifor the quarter and nine months ended Septenthe20®9, respectively. Our net loss was $107I8omiand
$128.6 million for the quarter and nine months eh8eptember 30, 2008. The table below shows dlintezest income, gain (loss) on sale of assedsosimer OTTI
charges, unrealized gains (loss) on interest mé®s, total expenses, income tax, each as a pageeaf average equity, and the return on averagigydqr the quarter ended
September 30, 2009, June 30, 2009, and March 8B, 20e year ended December 31, 2008, the quaneiesd December 31, 2008, and September 31, 2008rern on
average equity increased from (136.88%) for thetquanded September 30, 2008 to 30.55% for thetiguanded September 30, 2009 primarily due tazedlgains on sales of
investments.

Components of Return on Average Eqt

Realized Gail
(Loss) on Unrealized
Sales Gain (Loss) ol Total Return
Net Interest and Interest Rate  Expense Income on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average Swaps/Averac  Average Tax/Averag: Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualiz¢

For the quarter ended September 30, 2 18.47% 13.97% 0.00% -1.8%% 0.00%  30.52%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 19.0&% 0.95% 0.0C% -2.67% 0.0(%  17.3¢%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 17.91% 3.42% 0.0(% -3.51% 0.0(% 17.82%
For the year ended December 31, 2 11.17% -38.64% 1.04% -3.5(% 0.0(% -29.9%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 15.5(% 0.0(% 0.00% -4.7&% 0.00%  10.72%
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 10.0%% -157.2% 12.81% -2.4€% -0.02% -136.8&%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, fund and maintain RMBS, mortgage loams a
other assets, pay dividends and other general éssimeeds. Our principal sources of capital andsfdior additional investments primarily includeréags from our
investments, borrowings under securitizations @asercuritizations, repurchase agreements and fitlagicing facilities, and proceeds from equity offigs. We expect these
sources of financing will be sufficient to meet atwort-term liquidity needs.

We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements and, subject to markeftzors] other types of financing. The terms of thpurchase
transaction borrowings under our master repurchgseements generally conform to the terms in taedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishibe ISecurities Indust
and Financial Markets Association, or SIFMA, asdpayment, margin requirements and the segregafiat securities we have initially sold under tiepurchase
transaction. In addition, each lender typicallguiees that we include supplemental terms and ¢mmdi to the standard master repurchase agreerigptcal supplemental
terms and conditions include changes to the margimtenance requirements, required haircuts, anthpge price maintenance requirements, requirertteaitsll controversies
related to the repurchase agreement be litigatedoiarticular jurisdiction and cross default pravis. These provisions will differ for each of danders and will not be
determined until we engage in a specific repurcli@seaction.
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For our short-term (one year or less) and long-tégmdity, which include investing and compliana&h collateralization requirements under our repase
agreements (if the pledged collateral decreasealire or in the event of margin calls created Bppyments of the pledged collateral), we also@elyhe cash flow from
investments, primarily monthly principal and intserpayments to be received on our RMBS and wholegage loans, cash flow from the sale of securdesvell as any
primary securities offerings authorized by our lobaf directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe sget will be sufficient to enable us to meet gudied short-term
(one year or less) liquidity requirements suchoafsihd our investment activities, pay fees undermanagement agreement, fund our distributionsack&iolders and pay
general corporate expenses. However, a declirfeeindlue of our collateral or an increase in prepayt rates substantially above our expectationglaause a temporary
liquidity shortfall due to the timing of the necasg margin calls on the financing arrangementsthadctual receipt of the cash related to pringigidowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfy lmuidity requirements, we may have to sell debadditional equity securities in a common stofflering. If required, the sale
of RMBS or whole mortgage loans at prices lowenttieir carrying value would result in losses aadiuced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater thae gear) liquidity and capital resource requiremevitsbe subject to obtaining additional debt fimémg and equity
capital. Subject to our maintaining our qualificaitias a REIT as well as market conditions, we exjpease a number of sources to finance our invests) including repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatiomroercial paper and term financing CDOs. Suchfiireg will depend on market conditions for capitibes and for the
investment of any proceeds. If we are unable tewemeplace or expand our sources of financingutnstaintially similar terms, it may have an advef§ect on our business and
results of operations. Upon liquidation, holdersof debt securities and shares of preferred staddenders with respect to other borrowings veitleive a distribution of our
available assets prior to the holders of our comstook.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&2ly0 million and $27.5 million at September 3002@nd December 31, 2008, respectively. Our cadfcash
equivalents declined as we utilized cash balarwesgay short term repurchase agreements.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $64.1 million and used net cash of $3.Riomi for the quarters ended September 30, 20092808. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and B00®perating activities provided net cash of $308illion and $12.4 million, respectively.

Our investing activities used net cash of $85.4iomiland provided net cash of $258.7 million foe tuarters ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 addascash
of $2.5 billion and $844.9 million for the nine ntbe ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectiv@iying the quarter ended September 30, 2008tiNeed cash to
purchase $1.3 billion in RMBS and which were offsgtproceeds from asset sales that provided appaigly $995.0 million as compared to the purchds¥60 thousand of
RMBS offset by RMBS sales that provided approxirya$319.4 million for the quarter ended Septemkgr2008.

Our financing activities provided net cash of $28ilfon and utilized $299.2 million for the quarteended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respecti@ly financing
activities provided net cash of $2.4 billion andB3& million for the nine months ended Septembe2809 and 2008, respectively. We expect to caetiio borrow funds in th
form of repurchase agreements as well as othestypenancing. As of September 30, 2009, we hHE&3%L million outstanding under our repurchase ement with Annaly
collateralized by our RMBS with weighted averagerbwing rates of 1.74% and weighted average remgimaturities of 1 day. The RMBS pledged as cetidtunder the
repurchase agreement with Annaly had an estimaiesdlue of $216.9 million at September 30, 2009e interest rates of the repurchase agreemehtAmihaly are generally
indexed to the one-month LIBOR rate and re-priczedingly.
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At September 30, 2009 and 2008, the repurchasemgres for RMBS had the following remaining matesit

September 30, 20( December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ 153,07¢1) $ -
1-30 days 1,444,24: 562,1141)
30 to 59 day: - -
60 to 89 day: - -

90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: - -
Total $ 1,597,331 $ 562,11¢

(1) Repurchase agreements with affilia

Increases in short-term interest rates could negigtaffect the valuation of our mortgagelated assets, which could limit our borrowingligbor cause our lenders
initiate margin calls. Amounts due upon maturityoaf repurchase agreements will be funded primé#nilgugh the rollover/reissuance of repurchaseeageats and monthly
principal and interest payments received on ourtgagre-backed securities.

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-tégmdity, which includes investing and complianeih collateralization requirements under our repase
agreements (if the pledged collateral decreasealire or in the event of margin calls created Bppyments of the pledged collateral), we also@alyhe cash flow from
investments, primarily monthly principal and inte&rpayments to be received on our RMBS and wholegage loans, cash flow from the sale of securd®esvell as any
primary securities offerings authorized by our lobaf directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe oseswill be sufficient to enable us to meet apttéd short-term
(one year or less) liquidity requirements suchoafsihd our investment activities, pay fees undermanagement agreement, fund our distributionsackéiolders and pay
general corporate expenses. However, an incragsepayment rates substantially above our expentatould cause a temporary liquidity shortfaleda the timing of the
necessary margin calls on the financing arrangesreemd the actual receipt of the cash related twipél paydowns. If our cash resources are atiamgy insufficient to satisfy
our liquidity requirements, we may have to selldstments or issue debt or additional equity seearih a common stock offering. If required, tiadesof RMBS or whole
mortgage loans at prices lower than their carryialgile would result in losses and reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater than gaar) liquidity and capital resource requirememitsbe subject to obtaining additional debt finargand equity
capital. Subject to our maintaining our qualificatias a REIT, we expect to use a number of sotoc#sance our investments, including repurchaseagents, warehouse
facilities, securitizations, commercial paper aeht financing CDOs. Such financing will dependnoarket conditions for capital raises and for theestment of any proceeds.
If we are unable to renew, replace or expand ources of financing on substantially similar termsnay have an adverse effect on our businessests of operations. Upon
liquidation, holders of our debt securities, if aapd shares of preferred stock, if any, and lendéth respect to other borrowings will receiveistribution of our available
assets prior to the holders of our common stock.

We are not required by our investment guidelinesmi&intain any specific debt-to-equity ratio as vedidve the appropriate leverage for the particatsmets we are
financing depends on the credit quality and riskhofse assets. However, our master repurchaseragntés may require us to maintain certain debgtate ratios. At
September 30, 2009, our total debt was approxim&2I0 billion which represented a debt-to-equityia of 0.9:1.

At September 30, 2009, we had no material commitenkem capital expenditures.

Stockholders’ Equity
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During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, wiamecdividends to common shareholders totaling 3&lllion, or $0.12 per share, all of which wedgon
October 30, 2009. During the year ended Decembge2@8, we declared dividends to common sharet®tdéaling $28.9 million, or $0.62 per share.

On September 24, 2009, we adopted a dividend reiment and share purchase plan, or DRSPP The DR®Wi@es holders of record of our common stock an
opportunity to automatically reinvest all or a pontof their cash distributions received on comrstotk in additional shares of our common stock el &s to make optional
cash payments to purchase shares of our commah $tecsons who are not already stockholders maypalschase our common stock under the plan thropgjbnal cash
payments. The DRSPP is administered by the Aditnator, The Bank of New York Mellon. To date #adéave been no transactions under the DRSPP.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaramy September 30, 2009 or December 31, 2008.
Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007, we entered into a manageaggaement with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC igied to receive a management fee and, in certain
circumstances, a termination fee and reimbursewnfergrtain expenses as described in the manageagesement. Such fees and expenses do not hadesfickdeterminable
payments. The management fee is payable quaitealyears in an amount equal to 1.50% per annatoutated quarterly, of our stockholders’ equitg ¢efined in the
management agreement). FIDAC uses the proceeasifsonanagement fee in part to pay compensatias tufficers and employees who, notwithstandireg tertain of them
also are our officers, receive no cash compensdiiectly from us. The management fee will be &ty but not below zero, by our proportionate slofny CDO
management fees FIDAC receives in connection vigh@DOs in which we invest, based on the percerdéggquity we hold in such CDOs.

Financing Arrangements with Annaly

In March 2008, we entered into a RMBS repurchaseeagent with Annaly. This agreement contains gcuaty representations, warranties and covenantsiceat
in such agreements. As of September 30, 2009 adebh53.1 million outstanding under the agreemetit aweighted average borrowing rate of 1.74%. hefee been in
compliance with all covenants of this agreementesiwe entered into this agreement.

Restricted Stock Grants

During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, 3%Rafes of restricted stock we had awarded to candger’s employees vested and 932 shares wer@ddrg
cancelled. We did not grant any incentive awangingd the quarter ended September 30, 2009.

At September 30, 2009 there are approximately lliomunvested shares of restricted stock issweeiployees of FIDAC. For the quarter ended SepézrR0,
2009, compensation expense less general and athaiivis costs associated with the amortizatiorheffair value of the restricted stock totaled $263,

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdiions at September 30, 2009.

Greater
Than or
Within One One to Three to Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Three Year: Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:

Repurchase agreements for RMBS $ 1,597,31' $ - % - % -0 % 1,597,31!
Securitized dek 4,05¢ 8,92¢ 10,11( 410,32! 433,41¢
Interest expense on RMBS repurch
agreements (2 321 - - - 321
Interest expense on securitized debt 23,72 46,664 46,67: 371,68¢ 488,74+
Total $ 1,625,411 $ 55,59: $ 56,78: $ 782,01. $ 2,519,80:

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates for $153illion are included in balanc
(2) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifeSeptember 30, 20C
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi&etities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured finance orispparpose
entities, which would have been established forpilmose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangets or other contractually narrow or limited pwses. Further, we have not
guaranteed any obligations of unconsolidated estitior do we have any commitment or intent to g®Winding to any such entities. As such, we atematerially exposed to
any market, credit, liquidity or financing risk theould arise if we had engaged in such relatiqrsshi

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme, determined without regard to the dedudiaon
dividends paid and excluding any net capital gaivie.intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbetJ.S. federal income
tax purposes or otherwise, which would only be maitiof available cash to the extent permitted uinde warehouse and repurchase facilities, we fimsstmeet both our
operating requirements and scheduled debt serviceiowarehouse lines and other debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities areeén¢st rate sensitive in nature. As a result, istei@es and other factors influence our perforradac more so than does
inflation. Changes in interest rates do not neaégsarrelate with inflation rates or changes flation rates. Our consolidated financial statete@me prepared in accordance
with GAAP and our distributions will be determinkg our board of directors consistent with our oalign to distribute to our stockholders at lea$09df our REIT taxable
income on an annual basis in order to maintainREIT qualification; in each case, our activitiesldralance sheet are measured with reference tricetcost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.

47




ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary components of our market risk are egldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésik, r market value risk and real estate risk. Whitedo not seek to
avoid risk completely, we believe the risk can banfified from historical experience and we seeédtively manage that risk, to earn sufficient cemgation to justify taking
those risks and to maintain capital levels conststéth the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetewn which are rated below “AAA”. The credit kselated to
these investments pertains to the ability and mghiess of the borrowers to pay, which is assesskedebcredit is granted or renewed and periodiaaiyewed throughout the
loan or security term. We believe that residuahloeedit quality is primarily determined by the awers’ credit profiles and loan characteristidA&C uses a comprehensive
credit review process. FIDAC's analysis of loandudes borrower profiles, as well as valuation apgraisal data. FIDAC uses compensating factons asdiquid assets, low
loan to value ratios and job stability in evalugtlnpans. FIDAC's resources include a proprietasytiplio management system, as well as third psofyjware systems. FIDAC
utilizes a third party due diligence firm to perfoan independent underwriting review to insure cliempe with existing guidelines. FIDAC selects Isdar review predicated
on risk-based criteria such as loan-to-value, beerts credit score(s) and loan size. FIDAC alsasoutces underwriting services to review higher liglns, either due to
borrower credit profiles or collateral valuatiosugs. In addition to statistical sampling techngjl@DAC creates adverse credit and valuation sasppthich we individually
review. FIDAC rejects loans that fail to conformdor standards. FIDAC accepts only those loanslwirieet our underwriting criteria. Once we own anldaDAC's
surveillance process includes ongoing analysisuiiur proprietary data warehouse and services.fikdditionally, the non-Agency RMBS and other ABBich we acquire
for our portfolio are reviewed by FIDAC to ensuhat they satisfy our risk based criteria. FIDAGgiew of non-Agency RMBS and other ABS includesazitig its proprietary
portfolio management system. FIDAC's review of nbgency RMBS and other ABS is based on quantitaive qualitative analysis of the risk-adjusted mesuwn non-Agency
RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many ¢ast including governmental monetary and tax peticdomestic and international economic and palitic
considerations and other factors beyond our cantvel are subject to interest rate risk in connectiith our investments and our related debt obilkgest, which are generally
repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities, sieation, commercial paper and term financing CDOsr repurchase agreements and warehouse facitiagsbe of limited
duration that are periodically refinanced at currearket rates. We intend to mitigate this rislotigh utilization of derivative contracts, primarifyterest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedifces between the income from our investmerdan borrowing costs. Most of our warehouse faesiand
repurchase agreements provide financing basedloatiang rate of interest calculated on a fixedespt over LIBOR. The fixed spread varies dependmthe type of underlying
asset which collateralizes the financing. Accordlinthe portion of our portfolio which consists ftdating interest rate assets will be match-fundglizing our expected sources
of short-term financing, while our fixed intereate assets will not be match-funded. During permfd$sing interest rates, the borrowing costs esded with our investments
tend to increase while the income earned on oedfirterest rate investments may remain substntinthanged. This will result in a narrowing oéthet interest spread
between the related assets and borrowings and wesyresult in losses. Further, during this portdtthe interest rate and credit cycles, defaultddcrease and result in
credit losses to us, which could adversely affectliguidity and operating results. Such delinquesor defaults could also have an adverse effeth® spread between interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiesiditeg techniques are partly based on assumed lef/plepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid adjbit-rate mortgage loans
and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster timsumed, the life of the mortgage loans and RMBISheilonger or shorter, which would reduce theefifveness of any
hedging strategies we may use and may cause lossagh transactions. Hedging strategies involtilieguse of derivative securities are highly com@led may produce
volatile returns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is the@ffanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the reskttte fair value of
our assets will increase or decrease at differ@esrthan that of our liabilities, including oudigeng instruments. We primarily assess our intengtst risk by estimating the
duration of our assets and the duration of ouilitas. Duration essentially measures the markigepvolatility of financial instruments as inteteates change. We generally
calculate duration using various financial modeld ampirical data. Different models and methoda@egian produce different duration numbers for #messecurities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100 basigpfiom current
levels. Therefore, the volatility in the fair valoEour assets could increase significantly wheeregst rates change beyond 100 basis points. liti@ddther factors impact the
fair value of our interest rate-sensitive investtseand hedging instruments, such as the shape gid¢ld curve, market expectations as to futurergt rate changes and other
market conditions. Accordingly, in the event of ohas in actual interest rates, the change in thedéue of our assets would likely differ from trehown above and such
difference might be material and adverse to owldtolders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIVIBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which trdetging mortgages are typically subject to peroaid
lifetime interest rate caps and floors, which lithie amount by which the security’s interest yigldy change during any given period. However, ourdwing costs pursuant to
our financing agreements will not be subject toilsinrestrictions. Therefore, in a period of incsig®y interest rates, interest rate costs on ouohadngs could increase without
limitation by caps, while the interest-rate yietifsour adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS avefiéctively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we
acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedangages which are fully indexed. In addition, thertgages or the underlying mortgages in an RMBS$ bre subject to
periodic payment caps that result in some portiothe interest being deferred and added to theciath outstanding. This could result in our receipless cash income on our
adjustable-rate mortgages or RMBS than we needdierdo pay the interest cost on our related boimgs: These factors could lower our net interesbine or cause a net loss
during periods of rising interest rates, which wbb&rm our financial condition, cash flows and fesaf operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh&ybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and RMBS withrdwings that, after the effect of hedging, haveiiest rates
based on indices and re-pricing terms similar tn,dd somewhat shorter maturities than, the intenae indices and re-pricing terms of the mortgasyed RMBS. Thus, in most
cases the interest rate indices and re-pricinggerour mortgage assets and our funding sourdésetibe identical, thereby creating an interesé mismatch between assets
and liabilities. Therefore, our cost of funds wolikely rise or fall more quickly than would ourreéings rate on assets. During periods of changiteyést rates, such interest |
mismatches could negatively impact our financialdition, cash flows and results of operations. Titgate interest rate mismatches, we may utilizettedging strategies
discussed above. Our analysis of risks is basdedlDAC’s experience, estimates, models and assumptiorseTdnalyses rely on models which utilize estimatésir value an
interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic condiior implementation of investment decisions byroanagement may produce results that differ sicgnifily from the estimates
and assumptions used in our models and the prdjeesailts shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolim@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverseltgfteduring any period as a result of changing@sterates. The
following table quantifies the potential changesdt interest income, portfolio value should inggnates go up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis pastjming the yield curves of
the rate shocks will be parallel to each othertiwedcurrent yield curve. All changes in income antlie are measured as percentage changes frqonafleeted net interest
income and portfolio value at the base interest saenario. The base interest rate scenario assnteeest rates at September 30, 2009 and vaegtimates regarding
prepayment and all activities are made at each tdvate shock. Actual results could differ sifigantly from these estimates.
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Projected Percentage Change in Net Projected Percentage Change in

Change in Interest Ra Interest Income 9 Portfolio Value %
-75 Basis Point 11.57% 3.31%

-50 Basis Point 8.62% 2.21%

-25 Basis Point 5.71% 1.10%
Base Interest Ra - -

+25 Basis Point -1.61% -1.10%
+50 Basis Point -2.64% -2.20%
+75 Basis Point -3.66% -3.31%

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums paid on such investments wiirbertized against interest income. In generaiparease in
prepayment rates will accelerate the amortizatiogpuochase premiums, thereby reducing the inténesime earned on the investments. Conversely, digsamn such
investments are accreted into interest incomeefrecal, an increase in prepayment rates will acatdehe accretion of purchase discounts, themtrngasing the interest income
earned on the investments.

Extension Risk

FIDAC computes the projected weighted-averagedifeur investments based on assumptions regarbigate at which the borrowers will prepay the ulyileg
mortgages. In general, when fixed-rate or hybrigistdble-rate mortgage loans or RMBS are acquiréu orrowings, we may, but are not required tdeeimto an interest rate
swap agreement or other hedging instrument that&fely fixes our borrowing costs for a periodsgdo the anticipated average life of the fixedirtion of the related
assets. This strategy is designed to protect us figing interest rates because the borrowing astdixed for the duration of the fixed-rate pontiof the related
assets. However, if prepayment rates decreaseising interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could rateeyond the term of the swap
agreement or other hedging instrument. This coaiceta negative impact on our results from operatiaa borrowing costs would no longer be fixedrafie end of the hedging
instrument while the income earned on the hybridstedble-rate assets would remain fixed. This sithemay also cause the market value of our hyadidistable-rate assets to
decline, with little or no offsetting gain from thelated hedging transactions. In extreme situatiare may be forced to sell assets to maintainwatediquidity, which could
cause us to incur losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind &sses excluded from earnings and reported ierabmprehensive
income. The estimated fair value of these secartiectuates primarily due to changes in interagts, prepayment speeds, market liquidity, cradility, and other
factors. Generally, in a rising interest rate emwvinent, the estimated fair value of these seesritiould be expected to decrease; converselydati@asing interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these séesi would be expected to increase. As markétility increases or liquidity decreases, the faitue of our investments may
be adversely impacted. If we are unable to reaabtain independent pricing to validate our estaddtir value of securities in the portfolio, tlerfvalue gains or losses
recorded in other comprehensive income may be adieaffected.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayealmproperty directly in the future. Residenpabperty values are subject to volatility and mayalffected
adversely by a number of factors, including, butlmoited to, national, regional and local econorménditions (which may be adversely affected bystdy slowdowns and
other factors); local real estate conditions (sa€lan oversupply of housing); changes or continueaikness in specific industry segments; constra}iality, age and design;
demographic factors; and retroactive changes talibgior similar codes. In addition, decreasesropprty values reduce the value of the collatendl the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whighld also cause us to suffer losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtdtus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage loans, RMB&d other
assets and related debt against the effects ofrimagrest rate changes. We generally seek to neaoagrisk by:

. monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resé¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;
. attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, aimpations and interest rate adjustment periods;
. using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omiaaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of our investments and aurdwings;

. using securitization financing to lower averaget @fgunds relative to short-term financing vehgfarther allowing us to receive the benefit ofadtive terms for an
extended period of time in contrast to short teimarfcing and maturity dates of the investmentsuighet! in the securitization; ai

. actively managing, on an aggregate basis, thegsiteate indices, interest rate adjustment perimus,gross reset margins of our investments anshteeest rate indices
and adjustment periods of our financin

Our efforts to manage our assets aimdlitias are concerned with the timing and magnretud the repricing of assets and liabilities. We attempt émtcol risks associate
with interest rate movements. Methods for evahgainterest rate risk include an analysis of otenest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is the difface between interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities maturingeepricing within a given time period. A gap snsidered positive when the amount of interestgatesitive assets exceeds the
amount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities. &pgs considered negative when the amount of isteete sensitive liabilities exceeds intenege sensitive assets. During a pe
of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tenaldversely affect net interest income, whileaifive gap would tend to result in an increaseahinterest income. During a
period of falling interest rates, a negative gapulddend to result in an increase in net intenesbine, while a positive gap would tend to affedtineerest income
adversely. Because different types of assetsiahilities with the same or similar maturities mapact differently to changes in overall market saie conditions, changes in
interest rates may affect net interest income pedjt or negatively even if an institution were femtly matched in each maturity category.

The following table sets forth the estimated mayuor re-pricing of our interest-earning assets emerest-bearing liabilities at September 30, 2008e amounts of
assets and liabilities shown within a particularige were determined in accordance with the cottiegdderms of the assets and liabilities, excepistdble-rate loans, and
securities are included in the period in which tthgierest rates are first scheduled to adjustratdn the period in which they mature and doetuihe the effect of the interest
rate swaps. The interest rate sensitivity of @sets and liabilities in the table could vary sabsally if based on actual prepayment experience.

Within 3 1Yearto Greater than

Months 3-12 Months 3 Years 3 Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 3,906,841 $ 94,43 $ 1,349,54; $ 696,37. $ 6,047,20:
Cash equivalent 21,02¢ - - - 21,02
Total rate sensitive asse 3,927,86! 94,434 1,349,54 696,37: 6,068,22:
Rate sensitive liabilities, with the the effectssfaps 1,597,31! - - 433,41¢ 2,030,73
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 2,330,55!  $ 94,43: % 1,349,54:  $ 262,95 $ 4,037,48
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ 2,330,55! $ 2,424,98. $ 3,77453.  $ 4,037,48 $ 4,037,48
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as 38% 40% 62% 67%
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Our analysis of risks is based on FIDAC's expergrastimates, models and assumptions. These araBly on models which utilize estimates of failue and
interest rate sensitivity. Actual economic coratig or implementation of investment decisions AT may produce results that differ significanttprh the estimates and
assumptions used in our models and the projectdtseshown in the above tables and in this repbiese analyses contain certain forwkrmking statements and are subjec
the safe harbor statement set forth under the hgatffpecial Note Regarding Forward-Looking Stateteg
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffior CEO, and Chief Financial Officer, or CFQyiesved and evaluated the effectiveness of the desigl
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(aesiefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) oS&eurities Exchange Act) as of the end of theoplecbvered by this
quarterly report. Based on that review and evalnathe CEO and CFO have concluded that our cudisslosure controls and procedures, as designédaplemented, (1)
were effective in ensuring that information regagdthe Company and its subsidiaries is made knovaut management, including our CEO and CFO, asogpiate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure @)dvere effective in providing reasonable assueahat information the Company must disclose ipé&sodic reports under
the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processadmarized and reported within the time perio@gsgribed by the SEC'’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in our “internal cootret financial reporting” (as defined in Rule 1B&{) under the Securities Exchange Act) that osmiduring the
period covered by this quarterly report that hasemially affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, our internal control over financia@porting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Iltem 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in variousimls and legal actions arising in the ordinary sewf business. In the opinion of management, ltireate
disposition of these matters will not have a matexdverse effect on our consolidated financidkest@nts.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risarfadisclosed in Item 1A — Risk Factors of ourwaireport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decen3fie2008
and our subsequent quarterly reports on Forr@10Fhe materialization of any risks and uncertasidentified in our forward looking statementstzined in this report togett
with those previously disclosed in the Form 10-Ksobsequent Form 10-Qs or those that are presemfityeseen could result in significant adverseat$fen our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowse Bem 2. “Management’s Discussion and AnalysiBin&ncial Condition and Results of Operations ectgd Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” in this quarterly regmr Form 10-Q.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits:
The exhibits required by this item are set forthttoa Exhibit Index attached hereto.
EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
Number
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chimievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Company’s Registration Statement on AmendriNentL
to Form &-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by reference
3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investment@oation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company'sg®rt on Form 8-5 filed on May 28, 2009 and incogbed
herein by reference
3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Comya Registration Statement on Amendment No. 2dor-
S-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorpordekin by reference
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimexestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 1
Form ¢-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdragzein by referenct
31.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Execut®éficer and President of the Registrant, pursuar@ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, Chief Fine®©fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to SectB? of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Ewtiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursazdection
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHiéfiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll&.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Se@€i6rof the

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signedsobehalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the aftidew York, State of New York.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
November 6, 200

By: /sl A. Alexandra Denahe
A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
November 6, 200
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

|, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facinoit to state a material fact necessary to makstdtements
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial stateésjeand other financial information included imstreport, fairly present in all material respettis financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgmlisclosure controls and procedures (as definékanange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcgarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18d(f) for the registrar
and have

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedureswsed such disclosure controls and procedurbe ttesigned under our supervision, to er
that material information relating to the registraimcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is maa®wn to us by others within those entit
particularly during the period in which this repartbeing preparec

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@porting to be designed under our supervisio
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjalof financial reporting and the preparation @fancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtbis report our conclusions about the effectagno
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrideéthe period covered by this report based @h swaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in thgigtrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the registranthost recent fisc
quarter (the registrarst’fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikely to materially affect, th
registran’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@iuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a.

b.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which are reasonably lit
to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have dis#gn role in the registrarg’internal control ovi
financial reporting

Date: November 6, 2009

/sl Matthew Lambiase

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facinoit to state a material fact necessary to makstdtements
made, in light of the circumstances under whichhsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this repc

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjeand other financial information included imstreport, fairly present in all material respettis financial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintgmlisclosure controls and procedures (as definékahange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in ExcgarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 18d(f) for the registrar
and have

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedurbs ttesigned under our supervision, to er
that material information relating to the registraimcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&h®wn to us by others within those entit
particularly during the period in which this rep@toeing preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed under our supervisio
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjalof financial reporting and the preparation @fancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagisclosure controls and procedures and presémtad report our conclusions about the effectessno
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrideéthe period covered by this report based @h swaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in tgistrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the registranthost recent fisc
quarter (the registrarst’fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasopdikely to materially affect, th
registran’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@iuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reporting which are reasone
likely to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refraahcial information; an

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatalwes management or other employees who have #isémt role in the registrarg’internal control o
financial reporting

Date: November 6, 2009

/sl _A. Alexandra Denahan

A. Alexandra Denahan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended September 30, 2009 to be ¥ilich

Securities and Exchange Commission on or aboudates hereof (the “Report”), Matthew Lambiase, President, and Chief Execu@¥icer of the Company, certify, pursuan
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18.0. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2.

The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiab@wn and results of operations of the Companhatdates of, and for
the periods covered by, the Rep

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxbtiiled for purposes of the Securities ExchangedA 1934.

/sl Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President
November 6, 2009
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended September 30, 2009 to be ¥ilich

Securities and Exchange Commission on or abouldtes hereof (the “Report”), A. Alexandra Denahan, Chief Financial Officeda®ecretary of the Company, certify, purst
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@U1S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2.

The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiab@wn and results of operations of the Companhatdates of, and for
the periods covered by, the Rep

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxbtiiled for purposes of the Securities ExchangedA 1934.

/sl A. Alexandra Denahan
A. Alexandra Denahan
Chief Financial Officer
November 6, 2009
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